
 

 

 
 
 
 
Please ask for Amanda Clayton 
Direct Line: 01246 345237 
Email  committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk 
 
 
The Chair and Members of Planning 
Committee 

 

 13 August 2021 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE to be held on 
MONDAY, 23 AUGUST 2021 at 1.00 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Rose 
Hill, Chesterfield S40 1LP, the agenda for which is set out below. 

 
Members of the public will be able to view the committee by clicking the link 

here.  
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
 

1.    Apologies for Absence  
 

2.    Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests Relating to Items on the 
Agenda  
 

3.    Minutes of Planning Committee (Pages 3 - 20) 
 
Planning Committee  12th July, 2021 
 

4.    Applications for Planning Permission - Plans Determined by the 
Committee (Pages 21 - 86) 
 

5.    Applications for Planning Permission - Plans Determined by the 
Development Management and Conservation Manager (P140D) (Pages 
87 - 104) 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7EjAgwra2iKCwC0YKf7Niw


 
 

 
6.    Applications to Fell or Prune Trees (P620D) (Pages 105 - 108) 

 
7.    Appeals Report (P000) (Pages 109 - 112) 

 
8.    Enforcement Report (P410) (Pages 113 - 116) 

 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

 
  

 



 12.07.21 

1 
 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 12th July, 2021 
 

Present:- 
 

Councillor Callan (Chair) 

 
Councillors D Collins 

Barr 
Bingham 
Catt 
Caulfield 
Davenport 
 

Councillors T Gilby 
Miles 
Simmons 
Marriott 
G Falconer 

 
 

18    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Borrell, Brady and 
Mann. 
 

19    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

20    MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED -  
 
That the Minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 21 
June, 2021 be signed by the Chair as a true record. 
 

21    APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION - PLANS 
DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE  
 
*The Committee considered the under-mentioned applications in light of 
reports by the Group Leader, Development Management and resolved as 
follows:- 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 12.07.21 

2 
 
 

CHE/21/00089/FUL - CHANGE OF USE FROM HAIR SALON TO ICE-
CREAM PARLOUR AND SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION TO 
PROVIDE A TOILET FOR CUSTOMERS AND COLLEAGUES AT 53 
HEATON STREET, CHESTERFIELD, DERBYSHIRE, S40 3AF FOR 
MRS MILLS 
 
In accordance with Minute No. 299 (2001/2002) Sue Gadsby (local 
resident) addressed the committee. Written submissions were presented 
from Ron Mihaly (local resident) and James Mills (agent for the applicant). 
 
That the officer recommendation not be upheld and the application be 
refused for the following reasons:- 
 
The proposed change of use would intensify the use of the premises 
resulting in additional demand for parking in the locality to the detriment of 
highway safety contrary to policies CLP20 and 22 of the Local Plan and 
para 109 of the NPPF. 
 
 
CHE/20/00632/FUL  
 
PROPOSAL: CHANGE OF USE FROM COMMERICAL (PREVIOUSLY 

B1 OFFICE) TO 5 RESIDENTIAL UNITS (C3) - 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION RECEIVED 14/04/2021 AND 
11/06/2021  

 
LOCATION:   56 COBDEN ROAD, CHESTERFIELD S40 4TD 
 
In accordance with Minute No. 299 (2001/2002) Mr Andrew Little 
(applicant) addressed the committee. 
 
That the officer recommendation be upheld and the application be 
approved subject to the following conditions:- 
 
1.  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 
expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 
2.  The development hereby approved shall only be carried out in full 
accordance with the approved plans (listed below) with the exception of 
any approved non-material amendment. All external dimensions and 
elevational treatments shall be as shown on the approved plan/s (listed 
below). 

Page 4



 12.07.21 

3 
 
 

 
- East Side Elevation proposed V2 – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Dated April 21 
- North Side Elevation proposed V2 – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Dated April 

21 
- South side Elevation proposed V2 – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Dated April 

21 
- West side Elevation proposed V2 – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Dated April 21 
- Local Heritage Statement – Dated April 2021 
- Proposed ground floor – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Status A (received 

11/06/2021) 
- Proposed first floor – Scale 1:100 @ A3 – Status A (received 

11/06/2021) 
 

3.  Construction work shall only be carried out between the hours of 
8:00am and 6:00pm Monday to Friday and 9:00am to 5:00pm on a 
Saturday. Construction work shall not be carried out on Sundays or 
Public Holidays. The term ‘construction work’ shall include mobile 
and fixed plant/machinery, (e.g. generators) radios and the delivery 
of construction materials.  

 
NB - The above condition takes into account current guidance issued by 
Derbyshire County Council, Highways Agency and all Utility companies. 
 
4.  Within 2 months of commencement of development, or prior to 
occupation, whichever is sooner, unless agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, full details of hard and soft landscape works for the 
approved development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
for consideration. Hard landscaping includes proposed structures (e.g. 
refuse storage, bicycle storage, external lighting etc). Included in these 
details shall be the proposed car parking layout. These works shall be 
carried out as approved prior to the occupation of the dwellings.  
 
5.  Within 2 months of the commencement of the development hereby 
approved, a scheme for biodiversity and ecological enhancement 
measures shall be installed/integrated into the development site. The 
ecological enhancement measures shall thereafter be retained and 
maintained throughout the life of the development.  
 
6.  As a minimum, no. 1 residential charging point shall be provided at the 
application site with an IPD65 rated domestic 13amp socket, directly 
wired to the consumer unit with 32 amp cable to an appropriate RCD. The 
socket shall be located where it can later be changed to a 32amp EVCP. 

Page 5



 12.07.21 

4 
 
 

Alternative provision to this specification must be approved in writing, by 
the Local Planning Authority. The electric charging points shall be 
provided in accordance with the stated criteria prior to occupation and 
shall be maintained for the life of the approve development. 
 
7.  The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the 
optional requirement for water consumption (110 litres water use per 
person per day) in Part G of the Building Regulations have been complied 
with. 
 
8.  The residential units shall be constructed in such a manner that noise 
egress between the units is minimised. Suitable noise insulation must be 
included within the build. 
 
9.  All lighting used on site shall be designed so as to control glare and 
overspill onto nearby residential properties. 
 
 
 
 

22    APPLICATIONS FOR PLANNING PERMISSION - PLANS 
DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND 
CONSERVATION MANAGER (P140D)  
 
*The Development Management and Conservation Manager reported that 
pursuant to the authority delegated to him, he had determined the under-
mentioned applications subject to the necessary conditions:- 
 
(a)   Approvals 
 
CHE/20/00696/FUL Re-submission of CHE/19/00120/FUL - Increase 

window size to the shop front and form a new 
window opening to the eastern elevation (revised 
drawings received 27.05.2021) at Pinewood 
Property Lettings Ltd 33 Holywell Street 
Chesterfield S41 7SA for Pinewood Properties 
 

CHE/20/00772/FUL Conversion of offices above retail units to form 7 
residential apartments, 1 office unit and the 
amendment/replacement of existing rear windows.  
Revised drawings received 15.01.2021, 
18.02.2021 and 11.05.21. (Description revised 

Page 6



 12.07.21 

5 
 
 

13/05/21 from 9 units) at 9 - 21 Stephenson Place 
Chesterfield S40 1XL for Sycamore Estates 
 

CHE/20/00783/FUL Two storey rear extension and raised decking 
(Revised drawing received 24.06.2021) at 18 
Orchards Way Walton Derbyshire S40 3BZ for Mr 
C Hoyland  
 

CHE/20/00859/ADV Freestanding billboard to provide directions to the 
associated Lidl store.  Revised drawings received 
11.03.2021and 12.05.21 at Lidl Sheffield Road 
Whittington Moor Chesterfield S41 8LX for Lidl UK 
GmbH  
 

CHE/21/00042/COU Change of use from retail to drinking 
establishment and refurbishment of front of 
property with tiling at 10 Station Road Whittington 
Moor Chesterfield S41 9AQ for Mr John Norton 
 

CHE/21/00088/TPO T104 - T105 Beech  - Crown reduce and fell T88 
Sweet Gum. - Revised application at The Fold 4 
Somersall Willows Chesterfield S40 3SR for Mr 
Peter Watmore 
 

CHE/21/00123/COU Change of use from former shop to sui generis 
tattoo studio at 32A Chesterfield Road Staveley 
Derbyshire S43 3QF for Ms Alison Riley  
 

CHE/21/00136/REM Variation of conditions 13 (landscaping) and 14 
(planting schedule) of CHE/19/00735/FUL - 
demolition of existing garages and erection of 6 
self-contained single storey complex behavioural 
bungalows and 6 self-contained assisted living 
apartments over 2 storeys and new tarmac 
through road linking Bank Street and Chester 
Street. (revised drawing received 18/05/21) at 
Garage Sites Bank Street Chesterfield S40 1BH 
for Chesterfield SSL Ltd 
 

CHE/21/00228/FUL Proposed extension to front of house to create 
larger family/dining room and new access 
arrangement - Revised drawing received 

Page 7



 12.07.21 

6 
 
 

19/05/2021 at 15 Tunstall Way Walton Derbyshire 
S40 2RH for Mr N Bissett 
 

CHE/21/00240/FUL Side extension at 4 Nevis Close Loundsley Green 
Chesterfield S40 4NS for Mr and Mrs Debell 
 

CHE/21/00242/FUL Ground floor extension to side elevation and 
hipped roof to gable at first floor at 59 Alexandra 
Road East Chesterfield S41 0HF for Mr Mark 
Simpson 
 

CHE/21/00267/FUL First floor extension to the front elevation at 19 
Cromford Drive Staveley Derbyshire S43 3TB for 
Mr Glen Pashley 
 

CHE/21/00270/FUL Two storey front extension, single storey side 
extension and front bay window and canopy at 6 
Beacon Hill Way Hasland Chesterfield S41 0AF 
for Mr Lambert 
 

CHE/21/00271/FUL Two storey extension at 113 The Green Hasland 
S41 0JT for Mr Mike Riley 
 

CHE/21/00279/FUL Flat roofed porch to front of house with balcony 
over at 9 Waltham Croft Hasland Derbyshire S41 
0UZ for Catherine Copley 
 

CHE/21/00280/FUL Proposed side and rear extension at Davenport 
592 Chatsworth Road Chesterfield Derbyshire 
S40 3JX for Ms Donna Hammond 
 

CHE/21/00283/FUL First floor side extension at 9 Greengate Close 
Chesterfield S40 3SJ for Mr Ian Davidson 
 

CHE/21/00285/RET Retention of wall and gateway at Mayfields Hady 
Lane Hady Derbyshire S41 0DE for Mr J Cash 
 

CHE/21/00289/NMA Non-material amendment to CHE/19/00596/FUL 
(Three storey rear extension and new external 
stairs from rear balcony) to amend design of 
balcony and alterations to external staircase to 
spiral at 66 Langer Lane Birdholme Derbyshire 

Page 8



 12.07.21 

7 
 
 

S40 2JG for Mrs Dawn Growcott  
 

CHE/21/00293/COU Change of use of ground floor retail premises to 
dog grooming salon at 401A Sheffield Road 
Whittington Moor Derbyshire S41 8LS for Mrs 
Caroline Miles 
 

CHE/21/00295/FUL Conversion of existing garage to form extended 
kitchen (amended plan received 14.06.2021) at 25 
Manor House Court Stonegravels Chesterfield 
S41 7GY for Daniella Else 
 

CHE/21/00296/FUL First floor extension above garage at front and 
rear of property at 18 Tollbridge Road 
Woodthorpe S43 3BL for Mr Daniel Saunby 
 

CHE/21/00301/FUL Conversion of existing garage to two bed 
bungalow ancillary to primary accommodation of 
61 Brockwell Lane for dependant relative at 61 
Brockwell Lane Brockwell Chesterfield S40 4ED 
for Mr Desmond Spencer 
 

CHE/21/00302/FUL Minor external alteration works comprising part 
build-up of external door opening to existing store 
at rear and installation of new PVCU casement 
window (amended drawings received 17.06.2021) 
at Britannia Inn 56 Old Hall Road Chesterfield S40 
1HD for Stonegate Group 
 

CHE/21/00304/FUL Proposed single storey front extension at 31 Hill 
View Road Brimington S43 1JW for Mr and Mrs 
Turner 
 

CHE/21/00319/FUL Removal of existing conservatory and construction 
of new single storey extension at 1 Wain Avenue 
Chesterfield S41 0FD for Mrs J Winfrow 
 

CHE/21/00327/FUL Proposed front extension at 3 Barley Lane Holme 
Hall Chesterfield S42 7JA for Yumer Mastev 
 

CHE/21/00332/FUL Removal of existing conservatory to the rear and 
construction of single storey kitchen/dining 

Page 9



 12.07.21 

8 
 
 

extension at 176 Old Hall Road Chesterfield S40 
1HQ for Ms N Betts 
 

CHE/21/00334/FUL Single storey rear extension at 55 Chantrey 
Avenue Newbold Derbyshire S41 7DP for Mr Mark 
Pugh 
 

CHE/21/00341/FUL Proposed rear extension and alterations to front 
elevation at 32 Holmebank West Brockwell 
Chesterfield S40 4AS for Mr and Mrs Krousti 
 

CHE/21/00384/TPO Crown lift and thin to T49 at 40 Netherleigh Road 
Ashgate Chesterfield S40 3QJ for Mr Mark Wilson 
 

CHE/21/00386/CA Crown lift to between 3 and 4 metres pruning back 
to suitable growth parts of 2 flowering cherries, 
remove laurel to ground level, remove 40-50% of 
crown of holly to reduce height, remove self-
seeded willow in the front garden at 16 Church 
Street North Old Whittington Derbyshire S41 9QW 
for Ms Naomi Redhouse 
 

CHE/21/00412/CA 6 large mix-species trees to have 30% crown 
reductions of the full crown though so they're not 
imbalanced and clear way (pictures attached) at 
49 Victoria Street Chesterfield S41 7LQ for The 
Guinness Partnership 
 

CHE/21/00415/TPO Felling of two trees x1 Cherry and x1 Sycamore 
within G2 of Tree Preservation Order 4901.37 at 1 
Eyre Gardens Highfield Road Newbold S41 7EL 
for The Guinness Partnership 
 

CHE/21/00428/TPO Crown reduce canopy by 4m and remove all major 
dead wood that may present a hazard to 
neighbouring properties. Prune back to suitable 
growing points to ensure the tree retains a 
balanced crown structure at 4 Orwins Close 
Newbold Road Newbold S41 8AQ for Mr Gary 
McCarthy 
 

CHE/21/00441/TPO Deadwood Oak (T1), fell Larch (T2-T5) and 

Page 10



 12.07.21 

9 
 
 

replant alder or willow at 19A Somersall Lane 
Somersall Derbyshire S40 3LA for Mr David Lyon 
 

CHE/21/00459/TPO Crown reduce by 3m and remove epicormic 
growth at 136 Kirkstone Road Newbold S41 8HF 
for Mr Gary McCarthy 
 

CHE/21/00463/TPO T1 Ash - The tree has already 50% Ash die back 
and needs to be felled at Masonic Hall 72 
Saltergate Chesterfield S40 1JR for Chesterfield 
Masonic Hall 
 

CHE/21/00474/CA Pruning of Himalayan birch to attain a clearance 
of 1m from structure at Avenue House Surgery 
109 Saltergate Chesterfield S40 1LE for Inspire 
Health 
 

CHE/21/00486/TPO Remove dead wood - T4 Ash at Eyre Chapel 
Newbold Village Newbold Road Derbyshire S41 
8RJ for Derbyshire County Council 
 

CHE/21/00487/TPO Fell T34 Beech at Sonoco Consumer Products 
Portland Works Goyt Side Road Chesterfield S40 
2PH for Derbyshire County Council 
 

CHE/21/00491/TPO Mixed deciduous trees adjoining footpath as 
indicated on attached sketch plan. Cut back from 
the footpath and crown raise lower branches to a 
height of 2.5m to permit access for pedestrians at 
2 Bar Croft Newbold S40 4YG for Mr Gary 
McCarthy 
 

(b)   Refusal 
 
CHE/20/00837/NMA Non-material amendment to the planning 

conditions In relation to CHE/16/00835/FUL. 
Condition numbers 08,09,11,16, relevant to phase 
1 - Conversion/extension of the existing building - 
The Elm Tree Inn. Relevant condition numbers 
03,06,07,12,13,15,17 and 18 to phase 2 New 
build 3 storey block to the rear and 2 storey 
building to the LHS of the Elm Tree incl 

Page 11



 12.07.21 

10 
 
 

associated hard and soft landscaping at The Elm 
Tree Inn High Street Staveley Derbyshire S43 
3UU for Vanessa Zheng 
 

CHE/21/00095/FUL Proposed two storey rear extension at 126 
Highfield Road Newbold Derbyshire S41 7HT for 
Mr Anthony Payne 
 

CHE/21/00141/FUL Erection of a two storey rear extension with a flat 
roof and a two storey side extension for a garage 
with room above. (Description amended 04/05/21) 
at 257 Hasland Road Hasland S41 0AA for Mr 
Liam Gavan 
 

CHE/21/00306/CLO New single storey side extension as per submitted 
drawing - 2021:011 - 02 at 26 Linden Drive 
Hasland S41 0NQ for Mr Sam Gregory 
 

CHE/21/00321/CLO Erection of single storey rear extension with 
rooflights at 50 Langhurst Road Brockwell 
Chesterfield S40 4BD for Debra Atkinson 
 

CHE/21/00336/TPO T5 - Sycamore - Remove as close to ground level 
as possible. (Tree is on land owned by 
Chesterfield Borough Council adjacent to 120 The 
Green).   
 
The tree works are proposed to stop the influence 
of the tree(s) on the soil below building foundation 
level and provide long term stability. 
 
Estimated costs of repair to the building are 
£30,000.00, if the influence of the tree(s) remain 
and £17, 377.00 if the proposed tree works are 
allowed to proceed. Granting permission will limit 
these costs. In the event of a refusal we, or our 
clients, will seek to secure compensation for the 
additional costs incurred through Section 202(e).  
Should the tree/s remain the total cost of repairs 
will be the Superstructural repairs + Alternative 
method of repairs = £47,377.00. 
 

Page 12



 12.07.21 

11 
 
 

It is the expert opinion of both the case engineer 
and arboriculturist that on the balance of 
probabilities the supporting information 
demonstrates the influence of the tree(s). 
 
Note: Further monitoring results may be submitted 
if these become available during the course of this 
application. 
 
At 120 The Green Hasland Derbyshire S41 0JU 
for Environmental Services 
 

(c)  Discharge of Planning Condition 
 
CHE/20/00840/DOC Discharge of conditions 4 (materials), 7 

(owl/kestrel box), 8 (hard and soft landscaping) 
and 9 (site investigation) of CHE/19/00149/FUL - 
Refurbishment of existing unit and proposed new 
warehouse at Denka UK Ltd Broombank Road 
Chesterfield Trading Estate Chesterfield S41 9QJ 
for Denka UK Ltd 
 

CHE/21/00206/DOC Discharge of condition 4 of CHE/20/00434/FUL at 
56 Vincent Crescent Chesterfield S40 3NP for Mr 
and Mrs Lilley 
 

CHE/21/00247/DOC Discharge of planning conditions 5 (materials), 6 
(hard and soft landscaping), 7 (planting), 11 (site 
traffic management) and 12 (car parking) of 
CHE/20/00619/FUL - Erection of a 4 bed dwelling 
at 37 Whittington Hill Old Whittington Derbyshire 
S41 9HJ for Mr Andrew Bayliss 
 

CHE/21/00405/DOC Discharge of condition 4 (Devpt framework 
masterplan) of CHE/19/00131/OUT - Outline 
planning permission for up to 400 dwellings and 
provision of an area of public open space, with 
associated landscaping and access from Inkersall 
Road and Inkersall Green Road at land to west of 
Inkersall Road Staveley Derbyshire for Barratt 
Homes 
 

Page 13



 12.07.21 

12 
 
 

CHE/21/00417/DOC Discharge of conditions 3, 6 and 7 for planning 
application reference CHE/17/00868/FUL at 69 
Barker Lane Chesterfield S40 1EQ for Ms Andrea 
Collins 
 

(d)  Partial Discharge of Conditions 
 
CHE/21/00175/DOC Discharge of planning conditions 8 (site 

compound), 10 (desk top study) and 11 
(landscaping, boundary treatments etc) of 
CHE/20/00456/FUL - Erection of a detached 
dwelling at 58A Coronation Road Brimington 
Chesterfield S43 1EX for Mr Andrew Doherty 
 

(e)   CLOPUD Granted 
 
CHE/21/00165/CLO Erection of a single storey rear extension at 11 

Heathfield Avenue Chesterfield S40 4AJ for Mrs M 
Woodbine 
 

(f)   Split Decision with Conditions 
 
CHE/21/00268/TPO Oak - crown reduction of approximately 1.5 - 2m .  

Hawthorn (part of G2) crown reduction of 
approximately 1.5 - 2m.  Severing of Ivy at base of 
both trees, works to allow more light and less 
foliage onto property at 67 Pomegranate Road 
Newbold Derbyshire S41 7BL for Mrs Lucy 
Buckley 
 

CHE/21/00291/TPO Pine Tree (T7) - fell this tree and replace it with a 
younger, smaller tree in the same area of the 
property.  If felling is not to be allowed, then we 
would like to greatly reduce the overall size of this 
tree in height and width.  Horse Chestnut Tree 
(T5) - we would like to reduce the overall size and 
thin out the branches to allow more light to reach 
our garden as during the summer, when in leaf, it 
can be very oppressive and creates a lot of debris 
at 15 Penmore Lane Hasland Derbyshire S41 
0SG for Mr Richard Bond 
 

Page 14



 12.07.21 

13 
 
 

CHE/21/00369/TPO Removal of overhanging branches and crown 
reduction of 90% of T1 and T2 (oaks) at 9 
Sedbergh Crescent Newbold Derbyshire S41 8DY 
for MIss Lindsey Moore 
 

(g)  Planning Permission Required 
 
CHE/21/00282/PA Prior approval - For the erection of a first floor 

extension to existing bungalow, to a maximum 
ridge height of 8.753m from an existing ridge 
height of 5.847m at 4 Woodland Walk Holme Hall 
Chesterfield S40 4YB for Mrs J Lankford 
 

(h)  Prior Approval not Required 
 
CHE/21/00325/DEM Demolition of the concrete multi span bridge 

spanning the Doe Lea River and rail corridors to 
the east of the former Markham Colliery Site at 
Markham Colliery North Tip Bridge Doe Lea 
River/rail Crossing Off Markham Lane 
Duckamnton Chesterfield S44 5HY for Derbyshire 
County Council 
 

(i)  Conditional Consent for Non-material Amendment 
 
CHE/21/00335/NMA Amendment to approved layout to provide an 

access point from the end of the private drive 
adjacent to plots 58-60 in respect of planning 
permission reference CHE/20/00543/REM1 for the 
development of 106 residential dwellings at land 
at entrance to Cammac Coal Dunston Road 
Chesterfield Derbyshire for Strata 
 

CHE/21/00399/NMA Non material amendment to CHE/20/00305/FUL 
(Erection of new residential dwellings at the sites 
off Whitecotes Lane and Harehill Road with 
associated access, parking and open space)  to 
allow alterations to house types, alterations to site 
layout and creation of access road for Yorkshire 
Water tanker in southern corner of Harehill Road 
at land south of Walton Hospital Harehill Road 
Grangewood Derbyshire for Vistry Partnerships 

Page 15



 12.07.21 

14 
 
 

 
(j)  Withdrawn 
 
CHE/21/00443/TPO Crown reduction on western side 2-4 metres to 

stop dominance over garden at 159 Old Hall Road 
Chesterfield S40 1HG for Miss Tracey Hume 

 
 

23    APPLICATIONS TO FELL OR PRUNE TREES (P620D)  
 
*The Development Management and Conservation Manager reported that 
pursuant to the powers delegated to him he had determined the under-
mentioned applications in respect of:- 

 
(a)   The felling and pruning of trees:- 
 
CHE/21/00428/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the pruning of one 
Sycamore tree reference T39 on the Order 
map for Chesterfield Borough Council. The 
tree is located to the rear of Orwins Close, 
Newbold. 
 

CHE/21/00384/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the pruning of one 
Cedar tree reference T49 on the Order map 
for Derbyshire County Council. The tree is 
located in the grass verge to the frontage of 
40/42 Netherleigh Road. 
 

CHE/21/00336/TPO 
 

Consent is refused to the felling of one 
Sycamore tree reference T45 on the Order 
map for Environmental Services, Leicester at 
land adjacent to 120 The Green, Hasland. 
 

CHE/21/00486/TPOEXP 
 

Consent is granted to the The pruning of one 
Ash tree reference T4 on the Order map for 
Derbyshire County Council at Eyre Chapel 
Car Park, Newbold Village. 
 

CHE/21/00487/TPOEXP 
 

Consent is granted to the felling of one Beech 
tree reference T34 on the Order map for 
Derbyshire County Council at Goyt Side, 
Brampton to the frontage of Sonoco 

Page 16



 12.07.21 

15 
 
 

Consumer Products. 
 
The duty to plant a replacement tree has 
been dispensed with on this occasion due to 
the small planting area and no other 
alternative location. Other trees along the 
highway also contribute to the amenity of the 
area. 
 
 
 
 

CHE/21/00441/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the felling of 5 Larch 
trees within G20 on the Order map and the 
removal of dead wood on the remaining trees 
on the site for Mark Whatley Tree Services on 
behalf of Mr David Lyons of 19a Somersall  
Lane Somersall. 
 
A condition is attached to plant one specimen 
tree of either a Weeping Willow or Grey Alder 
planted in the centre of the lawn as a focal 
point to the garden.  
 

CHE/21/00459/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the pruning of one Oak 
tree reference T4 on the Order map for Gary 
McCarthy on behalf of Chesterfield Borough 
Council to the frontage of 136 Kirkstone 
Road, Dunston. 
 

CHE/21/00415/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the felling of one Cherry 
and one Sycamore within G2 on the Order 
map for Idverde on behalf of Guinness 
Partnership at Eyre Gardens, with a condition 
to plant two Rowan trees which are more 
suited to the location. 
 

CHE/21/00088/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the felling of one Sweet 
Gum tree reference T88 and the pruning of 
two Beech trees reference T104 and T105 on 
the Order map for Mr Watmore of 4 Somersall 
Willows, Somersall. 

Page 17



 12.07.21 

16 
 
 

 
The duty to plant a replacement tree has 
been dispensed with on this occasion due to 
other trees on the property and no loss of 
amenity. 
 

CHE/21/00/TPO 
 

Consent is granted to the pruning of trees 
within G3 and G4 on the Order map for Gary 
McCarthy on behalf of Chesterfield Borough 
Council at Water Lane, Loundsley Green. 
 
 
 

(b)   Notification of Intent to Affect Trees in a Conservation Area 
 
CHE/21/00386/CA The felling of 
one Willow and one Laurel and 
the pruning of one Holly and 2 
Cherry trees at 16 Church Street 
North, Old Whittington 

Agreement to the felling/pruning of 
trees.  The felling/pruning of the trees 
will have no adverse effect on the 
amenity value and character of the 
area. 
 
The trees are within the Old 
Whittington Conservation Area and 
the applicant wishes to fell the self-set 
Willow and Laurel which are 
competing with the more dominant 
trees and vegetation.  The applicant 
also wishes to prune other trees for 
general maintenance.   
 

CHE/21/00412/CA The pruning 
of 6 Cotoneaster trees at 49 
Victoria Street, Chesterfield 

Agreement to the crown reduction by 
30% to the six trees.  The pruning of 
the trees will have no adverse effect 
on the amenity value and character of 
the area. 
 
The trees are within the Abercrombie 
Street Conservation Area and the 
applicant wishes to crown reduce the 
trees as they have outgrown their 
location at the access to the 
properties.   

Page 18



 12.07.21 

17 
 
 

 
CHE/21/00474/CA The pruning 
of one Birch tree at Avenue 
House Surgery, Saltergate 

Agreement to the pruning of one 
Birch tree.  The pruning of the tree 
will have no adverse effect on the 
amenity value and character of the 
area. 
 
The trees are within the Town Centre 
Conservation Area and the applicant 
wishes to crown reduce the side 
branches of the tree which are 
growing towards the new extension to 
the surgery to clear the new structure 
by 1 metre.   

 
 

24    APPEALS REPORT (P000)  
 
The Development Management and Conservation Manager reported on 
the current position in respect of appeals which had been received.  
 
*RESOLVED -  
 
That the report be noted. 
 

25    ENFORCEMENT REPORT (P410)  
 
The Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and the 
Development Management and Conservation Manager submitted a joint 
report on the current position regarding enforcement action which had 
been authorised by the Council.  
 
*RESOLVED -  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
COMMITTEE/SUB   Planning Committee 
 

 
DATE OF MEETING   23rd August, 2021 
 
 
TITLE  DETERMINATION OF 
  PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
 
PUBLICITY   *For Publication 
 
 
CONTENTS SUMMARY  See attached index 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  See attached reports 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND For each of the attached 
PAPERS reports, the background papers 

consist of the file specified in the 
top right hand corner on the 
front page of the report.  Those 
background papers on the file 
which do not disclose exempt or 
confidential information are 
open to public inspection at the 
office of the Development 
Management and Conservation 
Manager – Planning Services.  
Additional background papers (if 
any) will be separately listed in 
the report.    

  
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

INDEX TO DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND CONSERVATION 
MANAGER’S REPORT ON THE 23rd AUGUST, 2021 

 
 

ITEM 1  APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS FOR 150 DWELLINGS 
OF CHE/18/00532/OUT - ( RE-SUBMISSION OF 
CHE/16/00614/OUT (OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR 
PROPOSED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT WITH ALL MATTERS 
RESERVED EXCEPT THE ACCESS) ON LAND TO THE 
NORTH OF NORTHMOOR VIEW, BRIMINGTON, 
CHESTERFIELD FOR VISTRY YORKSHIRE. 
 

 
 
 
 
                   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Case Officer: HF                          Application No: CHE/20/00869/REM 
 

ITEM 1 
 

Approval of reserved matters for 150 dwellings of CHE/18/00532/OUT - ( Re-
submission of CHE/16/00614/OUT (Outline application for proposed housing 

development with all matters reserved except the access) on land to the 
north of Northmoor View, Brimington, Chesterfield for Vistry Yorkshire. 

 
Local Plan: Not allocated, within the built framework  
Ward: Brimington South  
 
Committee Date: 23.08.2021 
 
1.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
Derbyshire Fire and Rescue - Recommend the Installation of a Domestic 
Sprinklers System or a minimum 32mm water supply capable of delivering the 
required volumes which would allow an installation to be carried out in the future. 
 
CBC Conservation Officer – This reserved matters application shows a buffer 
zone between Manor House and the new development. This grassland area 
would provide a fairly significant amount of open space to mitigate any impact on 
the setting of the grade II listed building. Consideration of the boundary treatments 
to the west of Manor House is required.  
 
DCC Archaeology – The archaeological contractors had initially submitted a 
version of the WSI which had not been agreed, they have now submitted the 
original agreed version, therefore no further comments at this stage. 
 
Chesterfield and District Civic Society – Wish to comment on the 
archaeological elements of the proposal. The trial excavations have made 
discoveries and we support the County Archaeologist's representations for further 
investigation. It appears to us that there are two main questions which further 
excavation might answer: (1) the nature and extent of Romano-British settlement 
on or near the site of the later village of Brimington. (2) the nature and extent of 
ironmaking on the site, revealed by the slag found in the trial excavations. This is 
a chance to advance knowledge which will not recur once houses are built on the 
site. The excavation need not delay the development by more than a few months 
and could yield genuinely useful results. 
 
The Coal Authority – The site does not fall within the defined Development High 
Risk Area, therefore there is no requirements under the risk-based approach for a 

Page 25



2 
 

coal mining risk assessment to be submitted. Refer to standing advice as an 
informative note.  
 
CBC Design Services – No objection.  The surface water drainage system is 
designed to accommodate a 1 in 100 year rainfall event including a 40% climate 
change allowance. The use of soakaways would not be feasible here. The sewer 
connections to the public sewers will require Yorkshire Water approval and the 
developer will require an agreement with YW for any adoption of the public 
sewers. The outfall to the watercourse may require approval from Derbyshire 
County Council flood risk team. 
 
Environment Agency – The site is in Flood Zone 1, refer to standing advice and 
consult the LLFA.  
 
Lead Local Flood Authority – No objections subject to conditions and footnote. 
 
Yorkshire Water – No objection to the proposed foul water details to discharge to 
the 150mm diameter public foul sewer in Chesterfield Road. It has been agreed 
that the surface water discharge for Catchment A shall be restricted to a max rate 
of 10 L per second to the 300mm diameter surface water sewer in Chesterfield 
Road. Catchment B is to discharge into the watercourse. We fully endorse this. 
 
CBC Housing Services – The proposal to provide 30% / 45 units of on-site 
affordable housing is welcome. The mix of these properties proposed as two- and 
three-bedroom houses and two-bedroom bungalows will meet demand from the 
Councils Housing register. The application does not currently state the proposed 
mix of affordable housing tenure and a discussion to ensure this mix provides a 
significant proportion of affordable rented properties would be welcome. 
 
DCC Policy  –  
Cllr comment: The footpaths needs to feel as if in countryside rather than 
tarmacked streets. What roads will be adopted by DCC and when? Is the Ash tree 
to be removed? What about water run off, is attenuation planned? Separation 
distances to existing dwellings are of concern.  
 
Officer comment: With regard to education, under the CIL system Derbyshire 
County Council work closely with Chesterfield Borough Council to identify the 
most cost effective and proportionate bids for funding to support education 
infrastructure to ensure that sufficient local school places are available in all 
localities across the borough.  
 
Further comments following amendments – There is a need for older persons 
housing. Note that 5% of the suggested houses are bungalows which meet M4(2) 

Page 26



3 
 

compliant dwellings. We would welcome a greater percentage of the proposed 
housing meeting M4(2) or Lifetime Homes standards in order to ensure future 
adaptations which will allow older people to continue living independently. 
 
CBC Strategic Planning Team – The principle is established through the outline 
permission.  Although policy CLP4 seeks 10% affordable housing, in line with the 
outline 30% is being provided. Policy CLP4 normally requires a 90/10 split 
between affordable rent and affordable home ownership. The applicant is 
suggesting a 50/50 split between rent and intermediate tenure. As applicant is 
proposing a higher proportion of affordable units overall, the proposed split is 
acceptable. Policy CLP4 also requires that 25% of units should be constructed to 
the M4(2) Adaptable and Accessible Building Regulations Standard. The need to 
secure a net gain in biodiversity is covered by the S106 agreement and condition 
10 of the outline permission. The water efficiency condition is required in line with 
CLP13.  
Whilst the Council has not formally adopted the National Space standards, they 
remain a material consideration. The applicant’s Planning Statement highlights 
that a number of house types fall below this standard. When checked against the 
schedule of house type this totals 55 dwellings, over a third of the total and half of 
the affordable units. 
The site is within the ‘medium’ CIL zone, chargeable (at the current rate) at £57.81 
per sqm GIA. Exemptions exist for affordable housing, although these must be 
sought prior to commencement on site. 
 
Brimington Parish Council – The public footpath Northmoor View Brimington 
Common to Chesterfield Road. This is shown along the main estate road and 
needs to be kept in its natural state so people can enjoy countryside walks. The 
footpaths are part of our village heritage. The Parish Council resolved to fully 
support the residents in wanting the footpath to be retained along the existing 
route and in its natural state.   
 
Further comments following the amendments – concern about the impacts from 
two storey dwellings at plots; 24, 2537, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42 and 44. There is still 
concern over the loss of the natural state of the existing ancient footpath and 
concerns over the loss of green space and wildlife that this development will result 
in. Remain concerned about traffic, congestion and air quality.  
 
Chesterfield and North Derbyshire Royal Hospital – Section 106 impact on 
health to be considered. Please advise of the appropriate process to follow. 
 
NHS Derby and Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group – As this is for 
reserved matters and the number of houses has not changed for the original 

Page 27



4 
 

application it is not considered we can make a request for S106 contribution at 
this point.  
CBC Urban Design Officer – The application has been revised following 
negotiation. Further amendments required are the provision of estate railings to 
plots 1 and 12 to provide public/private edge. Separation of the southern loop path 
and the drives serving plots 59-62, 66-70, 81-89, 44-45, 56-58 to provide 
public/private edge. Side gardens need to have the better-quality treatment to 
public spaces. Street trees will need to be specified to have a clear stem height of 
at least 2m to the underside of the canopy to ensure visibility is maintained. Tree 
root protection measures may also be required to prevent root spread into 
adjoining roads and pavements. The southern path is close to plot 59 this plot 
could be set back. A boundary fence is needed between plot 59 and the path. 
Consideration of materials at nodal points.  
 
CBC Tree Officer - The amendments are acceptable and enhance the 
landscaping scheme on the site. 
 
CBC Economic Development - Given the scale of the proposal there will be 
significant employment, training and supply chain opportunities created during the 
construction phase. It is recommended that a local labour/ supply chain planning 
condition is recommended to encourage local employment, training and supply 
chain opportunities during the construction phase to promote the opportunities to 
local businesses and local people. 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary Designing Out Crime Officer – The amendments 
tackle initial concerns and the shared accesses have been removed. Lockable 
garden gates should be secured. In terms of the paths and public private space 
agree with the urban Design officer comments. No lighting to the southern path.  
 
Highway Authority –  
Access for this site has already been established as part of the outline approval. 
Layout: The internal estate street layout should adhere to principles within national 
guidance (National Design Guide and Manual for Streets) as well as local design 
guidance, in the form of the County Council’s own residential design guide - 
Delivering Streets and Places (should the developer wish to pursue adoption of 
the estate streets at a future date). Whilst the proposals are generally acceptable 
from a highway safety viewpoint there are some issues to address:  

 Visibility splays and road widths to corners within the development.  

 Consideration needs to be given to parking areas in the vicinity of bends, to 
ensure adequate visibility is available for entering / emerging / manoeuvring 
vehicles. 

 The street layout contains some long straight sections, speed suppression, 
through horizontal changes in the street alignment, should be considered. 

Page 28



5 
 

 Swept paths, based on a large refuse vehicle, should be provided (11.6m 
long) and need to ensure collection on private drives.  

 Design and location of visitor spaces.  

 The pedestrian / cycle route could take ‘priority’ through the development to 
encourage active travel. 

 The Highway Authority would always encourage footways to be provided on 
both sides of the street. 

 Garages should have minimum internal dimension of 3m x 6m for single 
garages and 6m x 6m for double garages. 

 A wide pedestrian / cycleway route is shown through the development, 
consideration will need to be given as to how this may be protected from 
parked vehicles, and driveway access to ensure it remains available for its 
intended purpose. 

 Parking spaces should be 5.5m long x 2.5m  

 2m x 2m x 45 degree pedestrian intervisibility splays should be provided at 
all driveway access points to the new streets. 

 All shared driveways should be laid out a minimum of 5.5m wide with 45 
degree splays. 

 A pedestrian connection from the end of the cul-de-sac adjacent plot 43 to 
the main pedestrian / cycle route should be provided to improve 
permeability. 

 Street trees would be the subject of a commuted sum payment (if adoption 
of them and the streets are pursued). 

       
Further comments on amended scheme:  
 
Travel plan comment:  
The following should be considered at each property; cycle storage, high speed 
broadband, electric vehicle charging.  
Walking routes to be to appropriate standards, public rights of way to be upgraded 
to an all weather surface, upgrading of bus stops on Chesterfield Road.  
A baseline travel survey to be undertaken on occupation with the results 
presented as a monitoring report with a target of reducing single occupancy 
vehicle journeys of 10% over 5 years.  
Travel vouchers to be included along with sustainable travel information packs 
and taster tickets. 
 

 Derbyshire County Council do not approve ramps in the carriageways 

 We will accept shared surfaces on small cul-de-sacs only – they are 
currently in abeyance with the Department of Transport 

 Shared surfaces should be 7.5m wide 

Page 29



6 
 

 The traffic calming adjacent to Plots 3 /4 not accepted by Derbyshire County 
Council 

 Would suggest that areas of red blocks used on the carriageway and to be 
flat with the surfacing material either side. 

 Statement that regarding widening on bends not accepted, the bends should 
be extended by 0.6m on 90 degree bends. 

 Our comments state that Visitors parking accepted, I am led to believe this is 
not DCC policy as they are currently abused by residents and they form no 
function for the highway authority ie providing parking at public open spaces 
etc. therefore these should be removed in all cases. 

 Road to Plots 113 – 108 does not provide a walking facility i.e. footway for 
residents, appears they need to walk on the road or a reduced service strip.  
This also applies to other areas. 

 There are straight roads on this site which would encourage more than the 
required 20 mph target, these will have to be revisited to achieve the 
required speed limit to be catered for by vertical alignment / horizontal 
layout. 
 

Conditions recommended.  
 
Derbyshire Wildlife Trust – I previously reviewed (15th March 2021) the 
Biodiversity Enhancement Strategy prepared by ECUS November 2021. In that 
response I raised concerns the plans for grassland habitats across the public 
open space areas were very disappointing. Much of the POS will be sown as 
amenity grassland using a mix that does not include any herbaceous species and 
will be of very low benefit for biodiversity. Subsequent management of these 
amenity areas is not sympathetic to the needs of wildlife and will further restrict 
the opportunities for wildlife to benefit from these areas. The BES specifically 
states under section 2.2.2 that enhancements include, Creation of species-rich 
grassland with a low intensity management regime within the POS areas to 
benefit invertebrates, bats and birds, reptiles and hedgehogs. Regrettably, the 
amended landscape plan has not taken any of my earlier suggestions on board 
regarding the use of more diverse species mixes for the POS grassland areas. At 
present only a tiny area of species rich grassland is identified on the plan. 
I advise the LPA to request changes to the BEP and the landscape plan so that 
the areas of more diverse wildflower grassland are extended and the area of 
amenity grassland is reduced. This could be done using a wildflower species rich 
mix such as N1, N2, N4, N5 or N14 mixes from Naturescape or EM2 or EM4 from 
Emorsgate or a mix of equivalent diversity. The proposed management needs to 
be more specifically tailored to ensure that more areas of grassland are 
sympathetically cut in a way that benefits plants and insects as well as other 
species that depend on insects for food such as some birds and mammals. 

Page 30



7 
 

These changes could still leave areas of shorter amenity grassland and would not 
result in a significant increase in costs. In fact, some savings could be made on 
management costs if the frequency of grass cuts is reduced. If these changes are 
made, we consider that the landscape proposals and the Biodiversity 
Enhancement Plan can be aligned satisfactorily, and the Council can be confident 
that there is no net loss of biodiversity as a result of the development. 
Representations – Detailed in section 6.0 of the report below. 
 
2.0  THE SITE 
 
2.1 The application site is an open field which is largely bound to the north, 

east and west by existing housing. The hosing to the northern 
boundary is a mix of bungalows and two storey housing. To the 
immediate west is a commercial vehicle yard. Access is to be gained 
from Chesterfield Road in the west. To the east of the site there is a 
listed building (Manor House) just above the location of Northmoor 
View and fronting onto Manor Road. Two public footpaths cross the 
site; footpath 16 runs from the north of the site to the south western 
corner and footpath 17 runs east west across the site. The two paths 
meet at the corner adjacent to the vehicle scrap yard. The site 
generally inclines the north.  

 
2.2 Google image of the area, the routes of the footpaths can be seen:  

            
 

2.3 Site Photographs: 
 

Views from the site to the south:  

Page 31



8 
 

 

                      

                    
 

View from the site looking north west and north:           

 
 

Page 32



9 
 

 
 

Listed building:                       

 
 

 
 

Page 33



10 
 

Northern Boundary:  

                   
 

 

 
 

Page 34



11 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 35



12 
 

 
 

Site access:  

 
 

 

Page 36



13 
 

3.0  SITE HISTORY 
 
3.1 CHE/18/00532/OUT Outline Application for residential development (of 

up to 150 dwellings) and associated access works - Re-submission of 
CHE/16/00614/OUT (Outline application for proposed housing 
development with all matters reserved except the means of access - 
additional information received - heritage impact assessment and 
geophysical survey rec'd on 19/04/2017; and transport assessment 
addendum rec'd on 02/05/2017) – Refused, Appeal allowed subject to 
conditions and S106 agreement: 5th August 2019 
The S106 agreement required the following obligations:  

 30% affordable housing which is to be split 50/50 by tenure of 
affordable rent and affordable ownership,  

 A ground nesting bird mitigation strategy 

 Public open space and SUD’s maintenance and management 
through a management company 

 Up to 1% provision for Art (which is under negotiation see the 
developer contribution section below) 

 Contribution towards the NHS of £57,060 
 
4.0  THE PROPOSAL 
 
4.1 The application being considered is for the remaining reserved matters 

following the approval of the outline planning permission which 
considered access as an outline matter. The reserved matters to be 
considered under this application are; appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale.  

 
4.2 The application has been amended on a number of occasions since 

the initial submission. The application is now considering the following 
detailed proposals:  

 105 open market dwellings consisting of; 16 x Elmslie 3 bed, 16 
x Ash 3 bed, 15 x Juniper 4 bed, 17 x Chestnut 4 bed, 18 x 
Aspen 4 bed 13 x Alder 4 bed and 10 x Birch 5 bed.  

 45 affordable dwlelings consisting of; 8 x Juneberry 2 bed, 23 x 
A20 2 bed, 14 x Apple 3 bed.  

 
The designs of each unit are set out below:  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



14 
 

Ash/Elmslie     Apple  
 

   
  
A20 two block and three block  
 

   
 
 
Alder       Aspen       
 

   
 
 
 

Page 38



15 
 

Birch       Chestnut 
 

        
 
Juneberry      Juniper  
 

    
 
4.3 The designs of the house types are of a traditional and relatively 

simple form with the smaller dwellings appearing in blocks of two and 
three forming traditional terraces. The larger dwellings following a 
similar theme in terms of the design with some units having integral 
garages and/or bay window and gable details.  There are 8 bungalows 
included in the scheme. 

 
4.4 The layout of the development has been changed through the 

application process to now show a scheme which is of a simple form 
with perimeter blocks. The housing to the front of the site nearest to 
Chesterfield Road is laid out in a simple row. The SUD’s attenuation 
basin is then at the front of the site and to be landscaped. Houses 
front this area. The road layout now allows for vistas through the 
housing to the landscape beyond the site to the south. The housing to 
the east is laid out towards a green area which forms the setting of the 
listed building. To the south the housing will front the open fields.  

Page 39



16 
 

 
4.5 The layout of the scheme protects the routes of the public footpaths 

having combined walking and cycle route from Chesterfield Road to 
Northmoor View following the original alignment. The footpath route 
running from the north to the south western corner of the site is 
maintained between the new housing with space provided to define 
the area of public space then running along the route adjacent to the 
attenuation basin forming part of the public open space. An informal 
footpath is created to the southern end of the built-up area to provide 
the public with the opportunity to use routes that are adjacent to the 
countryside.  

 
Proposed layout:  

 

 
5.0  CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1  Planning Policy 

5.1.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and 
section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 require that, 
‘applications for planning permission must be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise’. The relevant Development Plan for the area 
comprises of the Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018 – 2035. 

Page 40



17 
 

5.1.2 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990 requires that; In considering whether to grant planning 
permission for development which affects a listed building or its 
setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of 
special architectural or historic interest which it possesses. 

5.2  Chesterfield Borough Local Plan 2018 – 2035 

 

CLP1 Spatial Strategy (Strategic Policy)  
CLP2 Principles for Location of Development (Strategic Policy)  
CLP3 Flexibility in Delivery of Housing (Strategic Policy)  
CLP4 Range of Housing  
CLP6 Economic Growth (Strategic Policy)  
CLP11 Infrastructure Delivery 
CLP13 Managing the Water Cycle  
CLP14 A Healthy Environment  
CLP15 Green Infrastructure  
CLP16 Biodiversity, Geodiversity and the Ecological Network  
CLP17 Open Space, Play Provision, Sports Facilities and Allotments  
CLP20 Design  
CLP21 Historic Environment 
CLP22 Influencing the Demand for Travel  
 

5.2 Other Relevant Policy and Documents 
 

National planning Policy Framework 2021 

 Part 2. Achieving sustainable development 

 Part 4. Decision-making  

 Part 5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes  

 Part 6. Building a strong, competitive economy  

 Part 8. Promoting healthy and safe communities  

 Part 9. Promoting sustainable transport  

 Part 10. Supporting high quality communications  

 Part 11. Making effective use of land  

 Part 12. Achieving well-designed places  

 Part 14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal 
change  

 Part 15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  

 Part 16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

Page 41



18 
 

Successful Places’ Residential Design Guide 

Historic Environment 

5.4  Key Issues 
 

 Principle of development: 

 Reserved matter - Design and appearance  

 Reserved matter - Layout  

 Reserved matter - Scale  

 Reserved matter - Trees and landscaping 
 

 Impact on the setting of the listed building  

 Archaeology  

 Residential amenity  

 Northern boundary and boundary treatments to the site 

 Biodiversity  

 Highway safety  

 Drainage and flooding  

 Climate change and air quality  

 Developer contributions  
 
5.5  Principle of Development  
 
5.5.1  The principle of the development is established by the outline planning 

permission. The site is considered to be a sustainable location for 
housing growth with good access to services and facilities. This 
remains in line with the policies of the Adopted Local Plan in terms of 
the location of housing as established by policies CLP1 and 2. Whilst 
concerns have been raised regarding the principle of the development, 
as this is an application considering the reserved matters only it is not 
appropriate at this stage to now re-consider any principle matters.  

 
5.5.2 The reserved matters in this case are: appearance, layout, scale and 

landscaping and these matters are considered below:  
 
5.6 Reserved Matter - Design and Appearance 
 
5.6.1 Local Plan Policy CLP20 states in part; all development should identify 

and respond positively to the character of the site and surroundings 
and respect the local distinctiveness of its context respect the 
character, form and setting of the site and surrounding area by virtue 

Page 42



19 
 

of its function, appearance and architectural style, landscaping, scale, 
massing, detailing, height and materials. 

 
5.6.2 The housing in the locality of the site is mixed with mainly later 20th 

Century housing surrounding the site generally of a traditional form. 
The housing proposed as part of this application seeks to follow that 
theme with the housing being of a simple and traditional form with an 
appropriate ratio of walling to window, window hierarchy and details. 
The integral garages, bay window and gable details are all reflective of 
the more recent housing development in the area and are considered 
to be appropriate to the site context.  

 
5.6.3 The Outline permission sought to condition materials relating to the 

housing development. In this regard the applicant has submitted a 
materials plan that the site will have a mix of brick finishes, however, 
all of the facing materials will need to be agreed through the discharge 
of condition when specific materials are known. The bricks suggested 
are a buff brick, a more orange/red brick and a darker brick. Other 
than the buff brick where a better-quality brick in terms of its 
appearance is required, the bricks are generally acceptable. However, 
how these are used throughout the site needs more detailed 
consideration in terms of the materials of the surrounding housing and 
the creation of nodal points of interest through the site. The roofing 
material suggested is not considered to be appropriate in terms of 
scale and detailing, and a better-quality concrete tile with finer leading 
edge would be more appropriate which can be agreed through the 
condition. Given the landscape wide views of the site and the relative 
consistency of colour to the surrounding roofscape, the roofing 
material to be agreed should be consistent throughout the 
development.  

 
5.6.4 To ensure the whole development is of a higher quality finish it is also 

important to agree the hard surfacing materials of the site through a 
condition. The comments raised regarding the surfacing of the 
footpath to the south of the site, the private drives and central 
cycle/path route are noted and a condition to agree the details of these 
surfaces is considered appropriate.  

 

5.7  Reserved Matter - Layout  
 
5.7.1 Policy CLP20 is also relevant in terms of layout. The layout of the 

development has been changed through the application process to 
now show a simple layout of perimeter blocks with vistas maintained 

Page 43



20 
 

through the development to the wider landscape views to the south. 
The layout maintains the definitive route of the public footpaths 
through the site with landscaping to the north south route and the east 
west route becoming the main road through the site with pavement 
and cycle route. This main road through the site will become a tree 
lined street in accordance with the latest Government advice.  

 
5.7.2 It is noted in the representations that some would like the definitive 

path to move to the south, others do not want any path to the south. 
The proposal retains the route of the definitive footpath through the 
centre of the site on its existing alignment avoiding the need for any 
formal diversion and integrates this with a cycle route and the road to 
follow the latest government guidance on the provision of tree lined 
streets. (see 5.9.1 below) This is considered appropriate and will 
encourage walking and cycling in line with the aims of the local plan in 
policies CLP1 and 2. Based on some of the public comments which 
wanted to ensure a walking route connected to the countryside to the 
south of the site, a southern footpath route, which is informal and will 
not be a definitive footpath, has been provided as a part of the 
scheme. Whilst the Crime Prevention advisor has commented this that 
route will not be lit, this is considered acceptable in this case given the 
rural edge to the site, where lighting would be intrusive and the need to 
protect wildlife habitat, particularly on the southern area of land (see 
5.14.3 below).  

 
5.7.3 Overall, the layout is considered to accord with the requirements of 

Policy CLP20 of the Adopted Local Plan. (Matters of amenity are 
addressed in 5.12 below) 

 
5.8  Reserved Matter - Scale  
 
5.8.1 The scale of the development is for a maximum of two storey 

development. There are 8 single storey bungalows proposed to the 
northern boundary of the site adjacent to existing bungalows on Top 
Pingle Close and Upper Croft Close. This is considered to be 
appropriate to the site and wider context of this area where there is a 
similar mix of single storey and two storey developments. The 
application details include the finished floor levels of the proposed 
dwellings and these have been demonstrated on plan, however the  
floor levels have not been provided relative to existing dwellings and 
land levels and therefore what has been submitted has limited value. 
Given the proximity of neighbouring properties, particularly the 
bungalows to the north, along with the slope of the site it is considered 

Page 44



21 
 

necessary for these details to be considered in more detail via 
condition so that the nearest dwellings to existing properties are not 
unnecessarily elevated from the ground levels to an unacceptable 
degree. 

 
5.8.2 Whilst the levels strategy has been submitted with annotation of 1m 

and 2m high retaining walls through the site it is not considered there 
is sufficient detail here to fully understand the level changes and how 
these will be detailed. Whilst this has minimal implications on 
neighbouring residents it does have an impact on the overall finish of 
the development and as such it is considered reasonable to impose a 
condition for these details to be agreed.  

 
5.8.3 Overall, subject to conditions the scale of the development is 

considered to accord with the requirements of Policy CLP20 of the 
Adopted Local Plan. 

  
5.9 Reserved matter - Landscaping 
 
5.9.1 The recently updated NPPF 2021 puts an emphasis on providing 

street trees as part of housing developments. Para 131 states; Trees 
make an important contribution to the character and quality of urban 
environments and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate change. 
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that new streets are 
tree-lined, that opportunities are taken to incorporate trees elsewhere 
in developments (such as parks and community orchards), that 
appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term 
maintenance of newly-planted trees, and that existing trees are 
retained wherever possible. Applicants and local planning authorities 
should work with highways officers and tree officers to ensure that the 
right trees are planted in the right places, and solutions are found that 
are compatible with highways standards and the needs of different 
users. This is in line with the design quality requirements of Policy 
CLP20 of the Adopted Local Plan.  

  
5.9.2 The proposed development has a tree lined street running through the 

centre of the site which will form the main vehicle, cycle and 
pedestrian route. Trees are also shown around the attenuation basin 
area, to the eastern end near to the listed building and to the southern 
route of the site leading to the west and back to the open space 
adjacent the attenuation area. The trees adjacent to where the north 
south footpath arrives into the site are not specified.  

 

Page 45



22 
 

5.9.3 The trees in these areas are proposed to be a mix of; Acer campestre 
‘Elsrijk’ (Field Maple), Pyrus calleryana ‘Chanticleer’ (Pear), 
Liquidambar styraciflua ‘Worplesdon’ (American Sweetgum (Red)), 
Carpinus betulus (Hornbeam), Sorbus ‘Joseph Rock’ (Rowan or 
Mountain Ash), Prunus avium ‘Plena’ (Flowering Cherry), Prunus 
padus (Bird Cherry), Querus robur (Oak), Crataegus laevigata ‘Paul’s 
Scarlet’ (Hawthorn). The tree species specified are considered to be 
acceptable.  

 
5.9.4 The planting to the central cycle route is set out on plan with trees, 

amenity grassland and blocks of bulb planting. Additional planting 
plans have been provided for the wider open areas of the site and for 
plots.  Whilst the general details of these are acceptable, it is 
considered that the landscaping could be improved for biodiversity with 
greater areas of planting in the open spaces and changing amenity 
grassland, which is of low biodiversity value, for meadow grass or 
similar which provides better biodiversity in line with the comments 
from Derbyshire Wildlife Trust. The mixed hedge detail to the 
boundaries of the site is welcomed, although the northern boundary is 
not so straight forward (see 5.13 below). In addition, the vehicle yard 
to the west of the site could also be better screened with additional 
planting to minimise any adverse effects. In view of the need to secure 
appropriate biodiversity and screening, a landscape condition is 
required to ensure improved biodiversity in line with Condition 10 of 
the outline permission.   

 
5.9.4 The tree protection plan submitted shows that trees will be removed as 

necessary to create the access road into the site and one tree to the 
northern boundary roughly to the rear of 8 Headland Close. The 
remainder of the trees to the boundaries of the site will be subject to 
appropriate tree protection. This is considered to be acceptable.  

 
5.9.5 It is noted that the public open space planting plan includes a public 

feature but no information is provided in relation to this, again this 
detail needs to be secured via condition.  

 
5.10 Impact on the Setting of the Listed Building  
 
5.10.1 In considering the impacts on development upon heritage assets it is 

important to set out the legislative and policy requirements.  As the 
application would have the potential to affect the significance of 
designated heritage assets, namely the nearby listed building the 
statutory requirement is to have special regard to the desirability of 

Page 46



23 
 

preserving a listed building or its setting or any features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possesses (sections 66 (1) of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act, 1990) 
must be taken into account when determining this application. 

 
5.10.2 The NPPF sets out the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the 

significance of heritage assets (paragraph 197 NPPF). The NPPF also 
states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on 
the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be 
given to its conservation (paragraph 199). The more important the 
asset the greater the weight should be given (paragraph 199). The 
significance of a heritage asset derives not only from its physical 
presence, but also from its setting. Where harm is identified that harm 
is less than substantial harm should be weighed against the public 
benefits of the proposed development (paragraph 202). 

 
5.10.3 Policy CLP21 of the Adopted Plan reiterates the legislative and 

national policy stance; In assessing the impact of a proposed 
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, the 
council will give great weight to the conservation of designated 
heritage assets and their setting and seek to enhance them wherever 
possible. In order to ensure that new development conserves or 
enhances the significance of designated and non-designated heritage 
assets and their settings, the council will: 

  b) protect the significance of designated heritage assets and their 
settings including Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings 

 
5.10.4 In this case the heritage asset under consideration is the Grade II 

listed Manor House which dates from the 17th and 18th centuries and 
the associated and Grade II listed Street Boundary wall and gatepiers 
to the Manor House dating from the 17th Century.  

 

Page 47



24 
 

   
 

  
 

Page 48



25 
 

 There are other listed buildings in the wider area of Brimington which 
are not considered to be affected by the proposed development. 

 
  Proposed layout in relation to the listed building: 
 

   
 
5.10.5 The setting of the listed building in this case has a remaining 

association with the open fields to the rear of the building. However, 
this setting has been compromised by the housing development which 
surrounds the building in close proximity. The proposed development 
leaves an area of open space and an area of undeveloped land to the 
rear of the listed building which then retains the connection with the 
open land to the south of the site. The Conservation Officer noted that; 
This grassland area would provide a fairly significant amount of open 
space to mitigate any impact on the setting of the grade II listed 
building. On this basis the impact on the setting of the listed building is 
considered to be at the lower end of less than substantial harm.  

 
5.10.6 In line with para 202 of the NPPF 2021 such harm has to be weighed 

against the public benefits of the development. Furthermore, the site 
has been accepted for the development of 150 dwellings on appeal. 
Given the low-level harm in this case it is considered that the public 
benefits arising from the development including affordable housing and 
the economic benefits associated with the development are sufficient 
to outweigh the low level harm identified in this case. The proposal 
therefore accords with policy CLP21 and Part 16 of the NPPF 2021. 

 
5.11 Archaeology  
 

Page 49



26 
 

5.11.1 Policy CLP21 states; In order to ensure that new development 
conserves or enhances the significance of designated and non-
designated heritage assets and their settings, the council will: d) 
identify and, where appropriate, protect important archaeological sites 
and historic environment features. This is reiterated in the NPPF 2021 
where para 203 states: The effect of an application on the significance 
of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in 
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or 
indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement 
will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the 
significance of the heritage asset. Para 205 states: Local planning 
authorities should require developers to record and advance 
understanding of the significance of any heritage assets to be lost 
(wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their importance and 
the impact, and to make this evidence (and any archive generated) 
publicly accessible. However, the ability to record evidence of our past 
should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss should be 
permitted. (69 Copies of evidence should be deposited with the 
relevant historic environment record, and any archives with a local 
museum or other public depository.)  

 
5.11.2 In 2016 the original application for the development of this site was 

submitted, and based on the HER records and the submitted Heritage 
Impact Assessment it was considered that the site is likely to fall partly 
within the medieval core of settlement at Brimington. Given the site of 
the former Brimington Hall to the north, the Grade II Listed building 
known as ‘the Manor House’ to the east and ‘Manor Farm’, to the 
south, this evidence suggests that the medieval settlement may have 
been organised along the line of Manor Road between the early 
chapel (on the site of the modern Church of St Michael and All Saints) 
and the hall, and the site of Manor Farm at the southern end. 
Therefore, further information was required to establish the history and 
any impacts.  

  
5.11.2 In the 2018 submission it was considered based on the earlier 

application details that; given the vast majority of the site has been in 
stable agricultural use throughout the post-medieval period, there is 
medium-to-high potential for buried archaeology relating to historic 
coal extraction, and to the mid 19th century Brimington Colliery. There 
is low-medium potential for buried archaeology relating to the medieval 
village of Brimington, towards the northern edge of the site. There is 
low (though not negligible) potential of hitherto unknown archaeology 
of prehistoric, Romano-British or other date anywhere in the site. 

Page 50



27 
 

  
5.11.3 The submitted Geophysical report (survey undertaken in 2017) noted a 

number of potentially archaeological geophysical anomalies which 
occurred across the proposed development area. The scheme of trial 
trenching carried out revealed archaeological remains dating from the 
Romano-British (2nd century AD), medieval and industrial periods. At 
least two phases of a Romano-British field system were identified. 
These were represented by a surviving complex of ditches and pits in 
which artefacts and environmental remains were preserved. A 
medieval field system was also identified which was represented a 
complex of ditches on a slightly different alignment from the Romano 
British features. Evidence of ridge and furrow ploughing was 
associated with this field system. Evidence of industrial activity was 
also recovered which comprised extensive deposits of slag, and the 
remains of the base of a kiln or furnace. 

 
5.11.4 The report on the above archaeological field evaluation was sent to 

DCC Archaeology for comment; whilst the report is still in draft form, 
the information within it was sufficient to make archaeological 
recommendations on the existing planning application (2018). The 
archaeological evaluation identified extensive and well preserved 
remains and features, including environmental and industrial deposits. 
Taking this into account DCC Archaeology recommended that a 
further phase of targeted, detailed excavation be undertaken in 
advance of development of this site. On this basis a condition was 
recommended.  

 
5.11.5  The Inspector considered this information during the appeal and as a 

result the outline planning permission included condition 8, relating to 
Archaeology stating; No development shall commence until a written 
scheme of archaeological investigation / resource management; that 
includes post excavation analysis and publication has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development hereby approved shall only be implemented in full 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
5.11.6 Under this reserved matters application DCC Archaeology have noted; 

The correct version of the WSI has been submitted and has been 
agreed in December 2019 (Version b – Vers.b.12.12.19). It is 
recommended that the applicants be requested to commission the 
required archaeological investigations as soon as possible as it is vital 
that sufficient time is available to complete this work in advance of the 
commencement of any development on site. No other ground works 

Page 51



28 
 

shall be permitted until the archaeological fieldwork is completed due 
to the potential damage that may be done to unknown archaeology.  

 
5.11.7 Whilst it has been suggested by the applicant in discussion with DCC 

Archaeology that the investigative works could be carried out in 
phases this is not in line with condition 8 of the outline and cannot be 
agreed unless through the variation of that condition. 

 
5.11.8 The Civic Society comments on the application in regard to 

Archaeology noting: The trial excavations have made discoveries and 
we support the County Archaeologist's representations for further 
investigation. It appears to us that there are two main questions which 
further excavation might answer: (1) the nature and extent of Romano-
British settlement on or near the site of the later village of Brimington. 
(2) the nature and extent of ironmaking on the site, revealed by the 
slag found in the trial excavations. This is a chance to advance 
knowledge which will not recur once houses are built on the site. The 
excavation need not delay the development by more than a few 
months and could yield genuinely useful results. As set out above and 
in line with the comments of the Civic Society, the matter of 
archaeological impact, including investigation and recording is covered 
by condition 8 of the outline permission therefore there is no need for 
any further conditions being imposed at this reserved matters stage. 
As such the proposal is acceptable in terms of condition CLP21 and 
Part 16 of the NPPF 2021.  

 
5.12 Residential amenity  
 
5.12.1 Policy CLP14 sates that; All developments will be required to have an 

acceptable impact on the amenity of users and adjoining occupiers, 
taking into account noise and disturbance, dust, odour, air quality, 
traffic, outlook, overlooking, shading, daylight and sunlight and glare 
and other environmental impacts. This is reiterated in para 130 of the 
NPPF 2021.  

 
5.12.2 Substantial concern has been raised by local residents regarding the 

proposed development in terms of amenity impacts. It is 
acknowledged that many of the existing surrounding dwellings are 
single storey and/or have short gardens facing towards the application 
site which results in potential for amenity impacts. In amending the 
layout of the proposed development the applicant has been made 
aware of the need to provide the separation distances between 
properties as set out in the Council’s Residential SPD. The concerns 

Page 52



29 
 

of local residents have been taken into consideration in establishing a 
revised layout, although it is acknowledged that residents are still not 
satisfied with the proposals. The applicant has submitted a ‘separation 
distances review’ plan showing the separation distances in particular 
to the northern boundary. This plan clearly shows that the required 
separation distances have been met in the majority of cases and in the 
main exceeded.  

 
5.12.3 The SPD clearly sets out that where properties are back-to-back that 

21m separation distances should ideally be met, although flexibility 
below this is allowed in the consideration of impacts. Where properties 
are not back-to-back but are at a slight angle a distance of 16m would 
be acceptable and where the relationship is rear to side elevation then 
12m would be acceptable.   In this case the separation distances have 
been met and exceeded. There are specific property relationships to 
note in line with the SPD:  

 Plot 44 is 14.3m from the nearest property on Manor Road but plot 44 
is side facing to the neighbour where a lesser distance of 12m would 
normally be acceptable in line with the SPD.  

  Plot 38 is 18.2m from the nearest property on Upper Croft Close, this 
is due to that property being set at an angle to the proposed dwelling 
where a separation distance of 12m would normally be accepted in 
line with the SPD.  

 Plot 36 is 16.1m from the neighbour on Upper Croft Close, this is 
acceptable as plot 36 is a bungalow that is side on to the neighbour 
where again a distance of 12m is normally acceptable in line with the 
SPD. This is a similar situation to plot 35 where again the bungalow is 
side onto the neighbouring property where the separation of 12.9m 
and therefore acceptable in line with the SPD. As is plot 15 where the 
side facing bungalow is between 16.3m and 14.9m to the neighbour 
dwelling on Top Pingle Close.  

 The only other reduced separation distance is plot 1 at 19.1m where 
the properties will be at an angle where a lesser distance of 16m 
would have been acceptable in line with the SPD.  

 Therefore, whilst there are concerns in regard to the separation 
distances, these are within guidance and mainly exceed the 
acceptable limits.   

  
5.12.4 Concern has been raised by a number of local residents that there are 

two storey properties to the north boundary particularly plots 24 and 
25. Whilst the hope for bungalows to be in this location is understood, 
given that the separation distances here are 27.7m and 28.1m, there is 
no reason to resist the proposal on the grounds of amenity concerns. It 

Page 53



30 
 

is understood from the submission that at some point there has been a 
reference to bungalows only to this boundary. However, the 
application has to be considered on its merits and the construction of a 
two-storey property with appropriate and generous separation 
distances does not provide sufficient reason to resist the development.  

 
5.12.5 Within the scheme itself the neighbour-to-neighbour relationships 

between the new dwellings are considered to be acceptable overall 
whilst acknowledging that some gardens are restricted, for example 
where there are triangular gardens to corner plots.  

 
5.12.6 In considering the scheme and future works that could be carried out 

under permitted development, it is considered reasonable and 
necessary in this case to restrict the permitted development rights of 
the proposed dwellings to the northern boundary in terms of boundary 
treatments, extensions and outbuildings. Where there are side facing 
elevations to neighbours it is reasonable to restrict future windows 
being inserted.  

 
5.12.7 On this basis it is considered that the proposal results in acceptable 

amenity impacts in line with policy CLP14 of the Adopted Local Plan 
and para 130 of the NPPF 2021. (Concerns regarding the northern 
boundary are considered under 5.13 below) 

 
5.12.8 The comments regarding the desired space standards of the dwellings 

are noted. The two house types that fall under the required standards 
are the Elmslie noted as being a 3 bed 5 person unit which is an open 
market dwelling and the A20 noted as being a  2 bed 4 person unit 
which is an affordable dwelling. Whilst meeting the national space 
standards is desirable on all developments it is not a policy 
requirement. Given that these dwellings are all two storey houses with 
separate living, kitchen and bedroom spaces and which have their own 
external private garden space, it is not considered that the minor 
reduction in the size of some of the units below the space standard is 
significant. It should also be noted that the space standards would be 
fully met should the smaller bedroom/s be for single rather than double 
occupancy. This is not a negative of the scheme that is sufficient to 
warrant refusal of the application.  

 
5.13 Northern Boundary and Boundary Treatments to the Site 
 
5.13.1 As set out in policy CLP14 above it is important to consider the 

amenity impacts of the neighbouring residents in considering the 

Page 54



31 
 

application and in line with Policy CLP20 the appearance of these 
boundary treatments. The short gardens to the application site and the 
various boundary treatments existing along the northern boundary 
therefore need to be carefully considered.  

 
5.13.2 The northern boundary as existing is largely formed of low boundary 

hedges with some properties having fencing and towards the west of 
the site there are stone walls which form the boundary. The submitted 
northern boundary plan details the planting of a native hedge to the 
rear of plots 1 to 11. To the rear of plots 12 to 14 the existing hedge 
would form the boundary with a new hedge proposed again from plot 
15 to 22, plot 23 would maintain the existing hedge and plot 24 would 
have newly planting hedge. Plots 25 onwards to the east would utilise 
the existing hedge.  To the side of plot 44 a new area of hedge would 
be planted. It is noted on the submitted plans that where gaps are 
present native hedgerow will be planted and close boarded fencing is 
to be installed if existing boundaries do not provide adequate security. 
It is considered that more detail is required here in terms of where 
close boarded fencing is proposed and how this will sit in regard to any 
existing and proposed hedgerow planting and the stone walls to allow 
these to be maintained. 

 
5.13.3 Whilst a hedge along this boundary is welcomed not least in terms of 

biodiversity, a number of residents have raised concern that the 
proposed boundary of a hedge can easily be removed and will provide 
no certainty or security to existing residents. This is considered to be a 
legitimate concern in this case.  It is therefore necessary to impose a 
condition to ensure that a secure boundary is installed to the northern 
edge of the site, this is likely to be agreed via condition in the form of a 
1.8 high close boarded fence which is in line with many of the public 
comments received. Ideally the boundary should also include 
additional planting, possibly in the form of infilling the existing gaps in 
the hedges and allowing space for these hedges to grow. The 
condition therefore will have to also secure when any such planting 
takes place to allow the additional hedgerow to establish.  

 
5.13.4 It has also been noted in the representations that the construction of 

fencing may be within the root protection areas of retained trees, this is 
considered to be acceptable as the insertion of fence posts will have 
limited impact on the overall health of the tree. A footnote can be 
added to ensure the applicant is aware of the need to consult with their 
arboriculturist before carrying out any works within the root protection 
areas.   

Page 55



32 
 

 
5.13.3 In general terms the boundary details shown on plan 8881-L-110 Rev 

H are acceptable keeping the close boarded fencing to rear gardens 
and having a brick wall or mixture of brick walls and timber fence panel 
infill facing the public realm. However, the boundary treatments to the 
sides of plots; 65, 80, 81 need to be the brick and timber wall type 
rather than a close boarded fence where this is adjacent to the public 
realm. The estate or post and rail fencing needs to define the public 
and private spaces more fully to plots 1, 11 and 12 and near the 
southern path at plots 59 to 62, 66 to 70, 81, 89 and near the listed 
building at plots 56 to 44. This change can be secured via condition. 
Subject to conditions the boundary treatments are considered to be 
acceptable in line with policies CLP14 and CLP20 of the Adopted 
Local Plan.  

 
5.14 Biodiversity 
 
5.14.1 Local Plan policy CLP16 states that all development will “protect, 

enhance, and contribute to the management of the boroughs 
ecological network of habitats, protected and priority species … and 
avoid or minimise adverse impacts on biodiversity and geodiversity 
and provide a net measurable gain in biodiversity.”  The NPPF in 
paragraph 170 requires decisions to protect and enhance sites of 
biodiversity and paragraph 174 also requires plans to “pursue 
opportunities for securing measurable net gains for biodiversity”. 

 
5.14.2 Ecology matters were considered under the outline permission with 

conditions 9 and 10 requiring a pre commencement badger survey to 
be submitted and a biodiversity enhancement strategy to be agreed. 
Since the approval of the outline permission the Local Plan was 
Adopted which whilst not changing the position of the outline has given 
greater importance to matters such as biodiversity. In line with the 
comments on the landscaping scheme above and the condition 
relating to an enhancement strategy it is considered that general 
biodiversity enhancement is appropriately covered by the existing 
conditions and the condition recommended in this report. The 
submitted details in the enhancement plan have not been submitted 
for condition discharge as yet and therefore have not been accepted 
by Derbyshire Wildlife Trust. However, it is considered this could be 
improved by ensuring bat and bird boxes are integrated into the 
dwellings and bird boxes installed within the landscaped areas. The 
hedgehog friendly fencing is only proposed to part of the site and this 
needs to be expanded throughout the site where levels allow. This 

Page 56



33 
 

along with the changes to the landscaping as noted in the reserved 
matters section above and as recommended by the Trust, will ensure 
appropriate consideration of biodiversity.  

 
5.14.3 The agreed outline was also subject to a S106 agreement which 

required a bird mitigation strategy to be agreed. Whilst this is not fully 
resolved at this stage this is a requirement secured by the legal 
agreement and discussion will continue regarding this and which has 
to be provided and maintained on land to the south of the site and will 
need to be agreed before development commences.  

 
5.15 Highway safety  
 
5.15.1 Access to the site was agreed through the outline permission. 

Therefore, this application considers the detail of parking and access 
through the site. Local Plan policy CLP20 and CLP22 require 
consideration of parking provision and highway safety. 

 
5.15.2 The Highway Authority initially raised some concern relating to the 

detail of the roads within the layout and visibility splays. The amended 
plans were then considered to which the Highway Authority raised 
further issues regarding the layout. However, it is considered and 
agreed with the Highway Authority that these final amendments to the 
road layout can be resolved via condition including measures such as; 
the removal of visitor parking spaces, ramps and traffic calming 
measures from within the highway, widening the 90 degree bends and 
the introduction of measures to address the design of the elongated 
length of highway.  

 
5.15.3 On the basis of these changes and a condition to control this along 

with the conditions on the outline permission it is considered that the 
proposal is acceptable in terms of highway safety.  

 
5.15.4 Whilst the travel plan comments within the highway response refer to 

the upgrading of existing bus stops this was not a requirement of the 
outline permission which conditioned a travel plan, and therefore such 
off site matters site cannot be re-considered at this reserved matters 
stage.  

 
5.16 Drainage and Flooding  
 
5.16.1 Policy CLP13 of the Local Plan advises that; The council will require 

flood risk to be managed for all development commensurate with the 

Page 57



34 
 

scale and impact of the proposed development so that developments 
are made safe for their lifetime without increasing flood risk elsewhere. 
The council will seek the maximum possible reduction in surface water 
run-off rates based on the SFRA or most recent national guidance. In 
addition, the policy notes that; Development proposals will be 
expected to demonstrate that water is available to support the 
development proposed and that they will meet the optional Building 
Regulation water efficiency standard of 110 litres per occupier per day. 

 
5.16.2 The submitted drainage information notes that; The surface water from 

the development is to be split into 2 catchments (Catchment A and B): 
 Catchment A is to discharge to the existing surface water sewer 

located in Chesterfield Road, with a restricted discharge of 10l/s; 
Catchment B is to discharge to Tinker Sick watercourse located to the 
south of the site, with a restricted discharge of 25.4l/s. The attenuation 
basin will accommodate additional surface water in the event of heavy 
rainfall to ensure that the discharge of water does not exceed the limits 
stated. The surface water drainage is to be designed such that there is 
no external flooding for the 1 in 30 year event and all flows retained on 
site for up to the 1 in 100 year plus 40 % climate change event. It is 
proposed to discharge the foul water flows from the development to 
the existing 150mm diameter public foul sewer located in Chesterfield 
Road at the site access. 

 
5.16.3 The outline permission considered the issues of drainage and imposed 

a condition to secure an appropriate drainage strategy for the site. 
However, the Lead Local Flood Authority has considered the detail 
submitted and has recommend a further set of conditions to ensure an 
appropriate drainage strategy. The LLFA has been made aware of the 
comments from residents and whilst the drainage ditch to the north is 
noted the drainage of the whole site needs to be reconsidered in line 
with expert guidance of consultees through the discharge of the 
conditions.  

 
5.16.4 The policy situation has changed since the approval of the outline 

permission with the adoption of the Local Plan and therefore it is 
considered reasonable to impose a water efficiency condition to 
ensure the scheme complies with policy CLP13 above.  

 
5.16.5 On the basis of these additional conditions the proposal is considered 

to be acceptable in terms of drainage and flooding and in line with the 
requirements of policy CLP13.  

 

Page 58



35 
 

5.17 Climate change and air quality  
 
5.17.1 Policy CLP14 of the Adopted Local Plan requires in part that; The 

quality of the environment will be recognised at all levels of the 
planning and development process with the aim of protecting and 
enhancing environmental quality. All developments will be required to 
have an acceptable impact on the amenity of users and adjoining 
occupiers, taking into account … air quality and other environmental 
impacts. 

 
5.17.2 There is an air quality management zone in Brimington and it is 

recognised that new development will introduce additional potential air 
quality impacts overall. This was considered at the outline application 
stage and the Inspector included a condition to ensure electric vehicle 
charging for the proposed dwellings to seek to improve air quality over 
time. A further condition imposed by the Inspector was to ensure that 
construction times would be limited to minimise the impacts of the 
construction works on site. However, the permission did not include 
any measures to control dust on site through the construction process 
and therefore it is considered reasonable to add such a condition to 
minimise the impacts of dust to neighbouring residents. Subject to this 
condition it is considered the development is generally acceptable in 
terms of air quality impacts.  

 
5.17.3 Whilst there are no specific policy considerations for tackling climate 

change the Adopted Local Plan overall seeks to secure this through 
the provision of sustainable development with an emphasis on walking 
and cycling and easy access to services and facilities. The site is in a 
suitably sustainable location as established through the outline 
permission.   

  
5.18 Developer Contributions 
 
5.18.1 The outline permission considered the necessary developer 

contributions which in this case secured via S106 agreement; 30% 
affordable housing which is to be split 50/50 by tenure of affordable 
rent and affordable ownership, although plot by plot details of the 
tenure need to be submitted via condition, a ground nesting bird 
mitigation strategy, public open space and SUD’s maintenance and 
management through a management company, up to 1% provision for 
Art, which following negotiation and the submission of a viability 
appraisal has now been agreed to be a figure of £50,000 and a 
contribution towards the NHS of £57,060. Such matters are 

Page 59



36 
 

established by the outline permission and it is not possible to re-
consider them at this reserved matters stage.  

 
5.18.2 The proposal will also be CIL liable as follows:  
 The site is within the Medium CIL charging zone at £50 per sq m.  
 
 
 
 

   A B C D E 

Development 
Type 

Proposed 
Floorspace 
(GIA in Sq.m) 

Less 
Existing 
(demolition 
or change 
of use) (GIA 
in Sq.m) 

Net Area 
(GIA in 
Sq.m) 

CIL Rate Index 
(permiss
ion) 

Index 
(charging 
schedule) 

CIL Charge 

Residential  16,082 0 16,082 £50 
(Medium 
Zone) 

333 288 £929,740.63 

 
Calculation: 
 
Net Area (A) x CIL rate (B) x BCIS Tender Price Index (at date of permission) (C) = CIL Charge (E) 
BCIS Tender Price Index (at date of Charging schedule) (D) 
 

5.18.3 Policy CLP4 requires that; On sites totalling 10 or more dwellings, 25% 
of dwellings should be built to building regulations standard M4(2) 
(where a site includes affordable housing this should normally be 
proportionately split between tenures). In accordance with the 
submitted compliance plan the required 25% of units to meet the 
higher building regulations standard for accessible and adaptable 
homes has been exceeded with compliance in 44% of the units. It is 
also welcomed that this scheme includes bungalows to provide for the 
needs of those with mobility issues.   

 
6.0  REPRESENTATIONS 

6.1 A total of 70 representations received from 49 parties, who are 
generally local residents in the following areas: 
Manor Road, Headland Road and Close, Chesterfield Road, Briar 
View, Nether Croft Road, Ringwood Road, Top Pingle Close, 
Cemetery Terrace and Brimington Road.  
 
The comments received to both rounds of consultation are 
summarized into sections below:  

Page 60



37 
 

 
Principle:  

 Loss of valuable farm land.  Since leaving the EU agricultural 
land is more important for the UK to be self-sufficient, this is 
valuable farming land.   

 Loss of wildlife, including endangered nesting birds  
 Over stretched services in Brimington, already difficult to get a 

medical appointment, this will be worse.  
 Schools are at capacity  
 Chesterfield will become a city rather than a town with all this 

development. 
 The Council should be fighting for the community. 

 
Traffic:  

 Increase traffic will bring to gridlock in the area, which is already 
congested 

 Access is on a heavily trafficked road with no consideration for 
further traffic management. This will be a danger to residents.  

 Traffic will block local roads with builders vehicles once 
construction starts. 

 Traffic monitoring was during lockdown, so is inaccurate. 
 Increased traffic and increased risk to all road users including 

pedestrians.  
 Existing development has already added to the congestion 

Brimington, this will make it worse 
 Single access to A619 is dangerous.  
 The entrance road should be turned through 90 degrees, this 

would slow down traffic on entry.  
 The Travel Plan is merely tokenistic and will not alleviate the 

traffic concerns.  
 This could lead to an increase of 225 vehicles. 
 Pollution levels in the area are high, these will worsen. 

 
Drainage:  

 The proposed drainage strategy disregards water quality, an 
offline determination basin will only treat flows over and above 
25.4l/s and will fail to treat any crucial first flush event leaving 
pollutants to flow into the watercourse. An offline attenuation 
basin also fails to provide the opportunity for any further 
treatment measures such as sediment forebay. The basin would 
fail to meet the standards set out to be considered for adoption 
by a water company.  

Page 61



38 
 

 Concerns regarding the field drain which may be blocked 
through building works which could be for up to 5 years and may 
cause localised flooding. The intention in regard to this are 
unclear as they say ‘no problems are anticipated with the 
existing ditch drainage/flooding after the development is 
constructed.  

 Increased pressure on the sewerage system. 

 Water run-off will be massively increased compared to a green 
field.  

 The site of the attenuation basin should be reconsidered and 
moved the north.  There is no reasonable justification for not 
moving this as suggested, this should be assessed by an 
independent drainage expert. 

 Loss of the drainage ditch is not acceptable.  
 
  Boundary treatments:  

 Query boundary treatments? More details on the location of the 
boundary in relation to the drainage ditch and existing boundary 
treatments. Query location of retaining wall at the interface with a 
drystone wall and within a tree protection area at plots 4 and 5.  

 The existing northern boundary has a countryside feel with 
shrubs trees and dry stone walling, which will be lost.  

 Boundary treatments may encroach onto existing properties if 
not maintained. 

 The planting of shrubs is not sufficient, new owners might 
remove them and then there will be no boundary.  

 The original outline was for a fence along the northern boundary, 
this must be reinstated on the southern side of the drainage 
ditch. 

 The tree protection plan is insufficient and plans show boundary 
works within the protection area.  

 
Residential amenity:  

 There were supposed to be bungalows here.  

 It is stated that the building line for plots 4-9/10 running behind 
Headland Close and Headland Road has been moved 
“southward away from the site boundary” but there is no 
evidence of this. 

 All the houses on headland road side of the development not 
only have dwellings in close proximity to our properties but also 
large detached garages which are even closer than the 
dwellings. 

Page 62



39 
 

 Move the green area to the boundaries of our gardens. 

 Object to plots 5, 7, 23, 24, 25, 36, 37 and 38, these should be 
bungalows to reduce the adverse impacts on existing residents 
in terms of loss of light, loss of privacy and overlooking. We were 
told these would be bungalows.  

 Plot 1 is too close to the boundary  

 Houses and car parking near 28 and 30 Top Pingle Close are 
too near existing- would be overshadowed by existing. 

 No consideration of existing residents.  

 Back to back housing will feel claustrophobic.  

 New housing will be dominating on the existing. 

 Noise and disturbance from the new housing, diminishing the 
quality of our homes and our living conditions contrary to policy 
CLP14.   

 The minimal separation distances are not adequate. 

 Developer consultation with the community has failed.  

 Their planning commitment was to maintain a generous 
separation distance from existing properties.  

 There should be a buffer zone to the rear of existing properties. 

 What type of affordable housing is proposed?  

 Space between the properties is limited 

 The front gardens are very small.   

 The revised plans show a garage moved from 2/3m from my 
boundary to 5m from the boundary – this is still too close.  

 The separation distances are not consistent.  

 The separation distances recommended are woefully inadequate 
in this situation, given the adverse impacts   

 They promised greater green gaps to the northern boundary in 
the outline application. 

 Some amendments have made matters worse.   

 The amendments should have included an open green space to 
the north.  

 
Appearance:  

 Two-storey houses are not in keeping with the area.  

 Poor design, the houses are bland and ugly.  

 Two storey dwellings are completely unsympathetic with the 
surrounding built environment.  

 The comment in the submission about the negativity of blank 
gables facing the road shows these are unacceptable when 
facing other dwellings.  

Page 63



40 
 

 
Impact on the landscape:  

 Brownfield sites should be developed first  

 Loss of open space which is valued locally 

 No requirement to build in open countryside or green spaces 

 Due to climate change nature should be preserved and 
brownfield sites developed.  

 Contrary to the 2011 core strategy. 

 There is a 5 year housing land supply and therefore this 
development is not needed 

 The development is not within table 4 of policy CLP3.  

 The proposal does not meet the 7 criteria for adding the site to 
table 4.  

 The open character of strategic gaps will be protected from 
development between Brimington and Tapton. Policy CLP15 
requires that development should not harm the character and 
function of the green wedges and strategic gap.  

 No need for more houses. 
 
Health and footpaths:  

 Harmful to this beautiful open countryside, which is beneficial for 
the health and wellbeing of the community. 

 The paths across the field are used by locals and will be 
destroyed.  

 This green outlook with panoramic views across Derbyshire will 
be lost to local people. 

 Green spaces are vital for good mental health  

 The proposed path through the development should be a 
pleasant open path away from traffic, this should be moved to 
the south of the site. Natural surveillance is not a justification for 
the proposed location.  

 Public footpaths should be in a countryside setting. 

 Total disregard for wildlife.  

 Why is there a shared cycle/path on the original route, the path 
to the south should be the public footpath.  

 How will cycles and pedestrians share a path? 

 Ancient paths should not be covered by tarmac.  

 Diverting the footpath to the south is out of the question, 
resulting in anti-social behaviour and vandalism. 

 
Representation of community: 

Page 64



41 
 

 The value of the land to the community was underrepresented at 
the appeal.  

 The Council fell short in their response to the appeal. 

 Alternative ideas for proposals have been put forward but 
ignored by the developer.  

 Concerned about security to the back of existing houses 
throughout the construction process.  

 Due to the economic downturn by the time the properties are 
built no one will be able to afford them.  

 The proposal will limit the possibility of having solar panels on 
the property.  

 Due to Covid 19 decision making on this matter should be 
delayed, not everyone has access to online services. 

 
Local services overwhelmed:  

 The Design and Access Statement says “Brimington Centre, 
which includes several convenience shops, a post office, banks, 
doctors, dentists, pharmacy, etc., is”. When in reality there are 
NO banks and a single dentist, this shows how little the 
developer understands the locality.  

 
Heritage: 

 Impact on the listed Manor Farmhouse. Other heritage 
characteristics such as ancient public footpaths will be harmed.  

 Given the archaeological interest in the land the site should be 
preserved. 

 
The comments raised have been addressed in the report above.  

7.0  HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
 
7.1 Under the Human Rights Act 1998, which came into force on 2nd 

October 2000, an authority must be in a position to show: 

 Its action is in accordance with clearly established law 

 The objective is sufficiently important to justify the action taken 

 The decisions taken are objective and not irrational or arbitrary 

 The methods used are no more than are necessary to accomplish 
the legitimate objective 

 The interference impairs as little as possible the right or freedom 
 
7.2 It is considered that the recommendation is objective and in 

accordance with clearly established law. 

Page 65



42 
 

7.3 The recommended conditions are considered to be no more than 
necessary to control details of the development in the interests of 
amenity and public safety and which interfere as little as possible with 
the rights of the applicant. 

 
8.0 STATEMENT OF POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE WORKING WITH 

APPLICANT 
  
8.1 The following is a statement on how the Local Planning Authority 

(LPA) has adhered to the requirements of the Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
(Amendment No. 2) Order 2012 in respect of decision making in line 
with paragraph 38 of 2019 National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF).   

 
8.2  Given that the proposed development does not conflict with the NPPF 

or with ‘up-to-date’ Development Plan policies, it is considered to be 
‘sustainable development’ and there is a presumption on the LPA to 
seek to approve the application. The LPA has used conditions to deal 
with outstanding issues with the development and has been sufficiently 
proactive and positive in proportion to the nature and scale of the 
development applied for.  

 
8.3  The applicant /agent and any objectors/supporter will be notified of the 

Committee date and invited to speak, and this report informing them of 
the application considerations and recommendation /conclusion is 
available on the website. 

 
9.0  CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 The outline permission established the principle of the development. 

The proposed reserved matters are considered to be appropriate and 
will result in a form of development that will assimilate well into the 
wider context of the site in terms of scale, appearance, landscaping 
and layout. Subject to a number of conditions matters of biodiversity, 
landscaping and highway safety can be satisfactorily resolved.  

 
9.2 Whilst there remain public concerns regarding the proposal particularly 

in terms of separation distances the scheme demonstrates appropriate 
and in many cases separation distances that exceed those 
recommended in the SPD. Permitted development rights are to be 
removed via condition to secure amenity values in the long term.  

 

Page 66



43 
 

9.3 The heritage impacts are acceptable given the buffer of land between 
the development and the listed building. The archaeological work 
required to take place on site is secured by condition on the outline 
permission.  

 
9.4 The layout will secure existing footpath routes and will create a shared 

cycle and pedestrian route in line with the aims of the Adopted local 
plan. the scheme also proposes an informal footpath to the south of 
the site for residents to enjoy the connectivity with the adjacent 
countryside.  

 
9.5 The proposal meets the requirements of Adopted Plan Policy and 

Supplementary Planning Guidance along with the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021 and is therefore recommended for approval. 

 
10.0  RECOMMENDATION 
 
10.1 It is therefore recommended that the application be GRANTED subject 

to the following conditions and the original outline permission and the 
S016 agreement and including the negotiated £50,000 towards a 
scheme of public artwork: 

 
Conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby approved shall only be carried out in full 
accordance with the approved plans (listed below) with the exception 
of specified conditions within this decision and any approved non-
material amendment. All external dimensions and elevational 
treatments shall be as shown on the approved plan/s (listed below). 
 

 All received 18.12.20: 
 Site location plan 1010-003-01-01  
 Proposed materials layout 110-003-02-04  
 Land transfer plan 1010-003-02-05 Rev A  
 Tree Impact assessment BA10077AIA-E Rev B  
 Tree Impact assessment BA10077AIA-W Rev B 
 Tree Protection plan BA10077TPP-E Rev C  
 Tree Protection plan BA10077TPP-W Rev C 
 Tree survey and constraints BA10077TS-E Rev A 
 Tree survey and constraints BA10077TS-W Rev A 
 Juniper house type floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02-

HT03, HT04, HT05, HT06 Rev A  

Page 67



44 
 

 Chestnut house type floor plans and elevations  110-003-02-
HT07, HT08, HT09, HT10 Rev A 

 Aspen house type floor plans and elevations 110-003-02-HT11, 
HT13, HT14 Rev A  

 Alder house type floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02-HT15, 
HT16, HT17 Rev A 

 Birch house type floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02-HT18, 
HT19 , HT20 1 of 2 and 2 of 2 Rev A 

 
 All received 24.06.2021 
 Site Layout plan 1010-003-02-01 Rev G  
 Visibility Splays and Forward visibility 20030-IN-01 Rev B  
 Separation distances review 1010-003-02-09 
 Apple house type floor plan and elevation 1010-003-02HT29 1 of 

2 and 2 of 2 
 Ash/Elmslie house type floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02- 

HT 27 (Rev A) and HT28 1 of 2 and 2 of 2 
 A20 house type 2 block floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02- 

HT31 Rev A 
 A20 house type 3 block floor plans and elevations 1010-003-02-

HT23 Rev D 1 of 2 and 2 of 2. 
 Juneberry house type floor plan and elevations 1010-003-02-

HT30 Rev A, 1 of 2 and 2 of 2  
 POS landscaping proposals (sheets 1 and 2) 8881-L-101 Rev G  
 Detail on plot planting plans 8881-L-103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 

108, 109  Rev F 
 

 Boundary treatment plan 8881-L-110 Rev H 
 M4(2) Compliance layout 1010-003-02-08 Rev A 
 Elevational treatment plan 1010-003-02-10 

 
Other documents:  

 WSI – Targeted archaeological excavation Vers.b-12.12.19 
 Travel plan November 2020 Rev 2 (mosodi) 
 Transport statement October 2020 Rev 1 (mosodi)  
 Proposed levels strategy 1092-005 Rev A 
 Proposed drainage strategy November 2020 
 Planning Statement December 2020 
 Lithos soakaway results 30.04.2020 
 Lithos Geoenvironmetnal Appraisal Report no. 3569/1 
 Landscape Strategy November 2020 
 Design and access statement 1010-003-DAS01 November 2020 
 Biodiversity enhancement strategy November 2020 

Page 68



45 
 

 Arboricultural impact assessment 04.11.2020 ref: BA10077AIA 
 Pre development Tree Survey 07.10.2020 Ref: BA10077TS 

 
Reason - In order to clarify the extent of the planning permission in the 
light of guidance set out in "Greater Flexibility for planning 
permissions" by CLG November 2009. 

 
2. No development shall take place until a detailed design and associated 

management and maintenance plan of the surface water drainage for 
the site, in accordance with the principles outlined within: 
a. The Drainage Strategy Revision 4 dated 14/11/2020 “including any 
subsequent amendments or updates to those documents as approved 
by the Flood Risk Management Team” 
b. And DEFRA’s Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable 
drainage systems (March 2015), 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not increase 
flood risk and that the principles of sustainable drainage are 
incorporated into this proposal, and sufficient detail of the construction, 
operation and maintenance/management of the sustainable drainage 
systems are provided to the Local Planning Authority, in advance of full 
planning consent being granted. 
 

3. Prior to commencement of the development, the applicant shall submit 
for approval to the LPA details indicating how additional surface water 
run-off from the site will be avoided during the construction phase. The 
applicant may be required to provide collection, balancing and/or 
settlement systems for these flows. The approved system shall be 
operating to the satisfaction of the LPA, before the commencement of 
any works, which would lead to increased surface water run-off from site 
during the construction phase. 

 
Reason: To ensure surface water is managed appropriately during the 
construction phase of the development, so as not to increase the flood 
risk to adjacent land/properties or occupied properties within the 
development. 
 

4. The attenuation pond should not be brought into use until such a time as 
it is fully designed and constructed in line with CIRIA SuDS manual 
C753 and an associated management and maintenance plan, in line 

Page 69



46 
 

with CIRIA SuDS Manual C753 is submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the proposed attenuation pond does not 
increase flood risk, that the principles of sustainable drainage are 
incorporated into the proposal, the system is operational prior to first use 
and that maintenance and management of the sustainable drainage 
systems is secured for the future. 
 

5. Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report 
carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. This must demonstrate that 
the drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme 
(or detail any minor variations), provide the details of any management 
company and state the national grid reference of any key drainage 
elements (surface water attenuation devices/areas, flow restriction 
devices and outfalls). 

 
Reason: To ensure that the drainage system is constructed to the 
national Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage and 
CIRIA standards C753. 
 

6. No individual dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the 
optional requirement for water consumption (110 litres use per person 
per day) in Part G of the Building Regulations has been complied with 
for that dwelling. 
 
Reason: To protect the water environment in accordance with policy 
CLP13 of the of the adopted Chesterfield Borough Local Plan and to 
accord with paragraph 153 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

7. Notwithstanding the submitted boundary treatment plans a revised 
boundary plan shall be submitted to and agreed in writing prior to 
groundworks commencing on individual plots to better define the public 
and private spaces to plots 1, 11, 12, 59 to 62, 66 to 70, 81, 89 and 56 
to 44 and to provide a secure and robust fence line to the northern 
boundary. Works shall be completed in accordance with the agreed 
details prior to the occupation of each new dwelling.  

 
Reason: To ensure an appropriate finished form of development and 
protect the amenity of residents in accordance with policies CLP14 and 
20 of the Adopted Local Plan.  
 

Page 70



47 
 

8.  In line with condition 10 of the outline permission and notwithstanding 
the submitted landscaping scheme and levels strategy plan, a revised 
scheme of hard and soft landscaping and boundary treatments shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
within 28 days of the commencement of development, the details of 
which shall include :-  
a) all plant species to improve biodiversity, planting sizes, planting 

densities, the number of each species to be planted including 
supplementary planting to the northern boundary and how this will 
sit with a proposed fence line, and additional planting to the 
western boundary as a buffer to the vehicle yard and additional 
planting in the area between plots 11 and 12; 

b) grass/meadow seed mixes and sowing rates to improve 
biodiversity; 

c) finished site and plot levels in relation to existing 
development/land levels; 

d) hard surfacing materials, including details of the cycle/path to the 
main street and any crossing details associated with this, the 
footpath to the southern boundary and all roads; 

e) minor artefacts and structures, furniture, signs and lighting; 
f) details of the street tree planting, including any agreement with the 

highway authority. 
g) details including sections of all retaining boundary features and 

their facing materials, 
h) a schedule of when the various areas of planting are proposed to 

take place which to the northern boundary needs to be as soon as 
possible. 

 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development in accordance with policy CLP20 of the Adopted Local 
Plan.  
 

9.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or in any 
Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification) no buildings, fences, gates, walls or other means of 
enclosure shall be erected within the curtilage of, and no windows shall 
be inserted into the side or rear elevations of plots 1- 15, 22 – 27, 36 – 
42 and 44, and no extensions formed to the rear of plots 1 – 14, 22 – 27, 
36 – 38 and 40 – 42 and the side or rear of plots 15, 35, 39 and 44, 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority upon 
an application submitted to it. 
 

Page 71



48 
 

Reason: To safeguard the amenity impacts from such development in 
accordance with policy CLP14 of the Adopted Local Plan.  
 

10.  Throughout the construction process measures to minimise the spread 
of airborne dust from the site during the construction period including 
hosing of the site in dry weather and wheel washing facilities shall be 
provided and retained throughout the construction works.  

 
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with policy 
CLP14 of the Adopted Local Plan.  

   
11.  The development shall have a minimum 32mm water supply capable 

of delivering the required volumes for a domestic sprinkler system.  
 
 Reason: For future proofing the development should sprinkler systems 

need to be installed in line with policy CLP14 of the Adopted Local 
Plan.  

 
12. Prior to the transfer of any affordable units to a registered social 

landlord details of the plot by plot tenure shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Should this need to 
be amended on a needs basis any such amendment shall also be 
likewise agreed.   

 
  Reason: To ensure an appropriate tenure mix in accordance with 

Policy CLP4 of the Adopted Local Plan.  
 
13. Plots 11, 80, 81, 104, 108 shall have a side windows to the ground or 

upper floor as set out in the house type variants to overlook the public 
areas of the site. 

 
 Reason: To ensure natural surveillance for site safety in accordance 

with policy CLP14 of the Adopted Local plan.  
 
14.  Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 

the site compound, the subject of Condition 17 of the outline 
permission, shall not be brought into use until a details scheme of 
highway improvement works for the provision of a new junction with 
Chesterfield Road, together with a programme for the implementation 
and completion of the works has been submitted and approved, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority.  No part of the development 
shall be brought into use until the required highway improvement 
works have been constructed in accordance with the approved details.  

Page 72



49 
 

For the avoidance of doubt, this will include improved pedestrian 
facilities for crossing the A619 and the developer will be required to 
enter in an Agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 
with the Highway Authority in order to comply with the requirements of 
this condition. 

 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies 
CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local Plan. 

 
15.  Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to any works commencing 

a revised layout shall be submitted and approved to address the 
Highway Authority comments dated the 11th August 2021. 

 
 Reason: To ensure a safe layout in terms of highway safety in 

accordance with policies CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local Plan. 
 
16. The carriageways and footways of the proposed estate roads shall be 

constructed in accordance with Condition 16 of the outline permission 
above up to and including base course surfacing to ensure that each 
dwelling prior to occupation has a properly consolidated and surfaced 
carriageway and footway between the dwelling and the existing 
highway.  Until final surfacing is completed, the footway base course 
shall be provided in a manner to avoid any upstands to gullies, covers, 
kerbs or other such obstructions within or abutting the footway.  The 
carriageways, footway and footpaths in front of each dwelling shall be 
completed with final surface course within twelve months (or three 
months in the case of a shared surface road) from the occupation of 
such dwelling, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
 Reason: To ensure appropriate surfacing in the interests of highway 
safety in accordance with policies CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local 
Plan. 

 
17. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning 

(General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking 
and/or re-enacting that Order) there shall be no gates or other barriers 
within 6.0m of the nearside highway boundary and any gates shall 
open inwards only, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
 Reason: To preserve visibility splays, parking spaces and ensure 
sufficient pull off space from the highway in the interests of highway 

Page 73



50 
 

safety in accordance with policies CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local 
Plan. 

 
18. The proposed drives to the new estate street shall be no steeper than 

1:10 for the first 6m from the nearside highway boundary and 1:14 
thereafter. 

 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies 
CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local Plan. 

 
 
19. No part of the development shall be occupied until details of 

arrangements for storage of bins and collection of waste have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details 
and the facilities retained for the designated purpose at all times 
thereafter. 

 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies 
CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local Plan. 

 
20. Prior to the developing commencing on the construction of any 

driveways to serve individual dwellings, details shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing the 
means to prevent the discharge of water from the development onto 
the existing and proposed highway.  The approved scheme shall be 
undertaken and completed prior to the first use of the access and 
retained as such thereafter. 

 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with policies 
CLP20 and 22 of the Adopted Local Plan. 

 
21.  No part of the development shall be occupied until details of the 

proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of 
the proposed streets within the development have been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The streets shall 
thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved 
management and maintenance details until such time as an 
Agreement has been entered into under Section 38 of the Highways 
1980 or a private management and maintenance company has been 
established. 

 
Informative Notes 

Page 74



51 
 

 
1. If work is carried out other than in complete accordance with the 

approved plans, the whole development may be rendered 
unauthorised, as it will not have the benefit of the original planning 
permission. Any proposed amendments to that which is approved 
will require the submission of a further application. 

 
2. Coal Authority Standing Advice: The proposed development lies 

within a coal mining area which may contain unrecorded coal 
mining related hazards.  If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to the 
Coal Authority on 0345 762 6848. Further information is also 
available on the Coal Authority website at:  
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority 

 
3. When you carry out the work, you must not intentionally kill, injure 

or take a bat, or intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or block 
access to any structure or place that a bat uses for shelter. These 
would be offences under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the 
Habitats Regulations 1994 and the Countryside and Rights of Way 
Act 2000. Planning consent for a development does not provide a 
defence against prosecution under European and UK wildlife 
protection legislation. 

 
4. A footnote will be added to ensure the applicant is aware of the 

need to consult with their arboriculturist before carrying out any 
works within the rot protection areas.   

 
5. Advisory/Informative Notes (It should be noted that the information 

detailed below (where applicable), will be required as an absolute 
minimum in order to discharge any of 
the drainage conditions set by the LPA): 

 
A. The County Council does not adopt any SuDS schemes at present 

(although may consider ones which are served by highway 
drainage only). As such, it should be confirmed prior to 
commencement of works who will be responsible for SuDS 
maintenance/management once the development is completed. 

 
B. Any works in or nearby an ordinary watercourse may require 

consent under the Land Drainage Act (1991) from the County 
Council. For further advice, or to make an application please 
contact Flood.Team@derbyshire.gov.uk.  

Page 75

mailto:Flood.Team@derbyshire.gov.uk


52 
 

 
C. No part of the proposed development shall be constructed within 5-

8m of an ordinary watercourse and a minimum 3 m for a culverted 
watercourse (increases with size of culvert). It should be noted that 
DCC have an anti-culverting policy. 

 
D. The applicant should be mindful to obtain all the relevant 

information pertaining to proposed discharge in land that is not 
within their control, which is fundamental to allow the drainage of 
the proposed development site. 

 
E. The applicant should demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Local 

Planning Authority, the appropriate level of treatment stages from 
the resultant surface water discharge, in line with Table 4.3 of the 
CIRIA SuDS Manual C753. 

 
F. The County Council would prefer the applicant to utilise existing 

landform to manage surface water in mini/sub-catchments. The 
applicant is advised to contact the County Council’s Flood Risk 
Management team should any guidance on the drainage strategy 
for the proposed development be required. 

 
G. The applicant should provide a flood evacuation plan which 

outlines: 

 The flood warning procedure 

 A safe point of extraction 

 How users can safely evacuate the site upon receipt of a flood 
warning 

 The areas of responsibility for those participating in the plan 

 The procedures for implementing the plan 

 How users will be made aware of flood risk 

 How users will be made aware of flood resilience 

 Who will be responsible for the update of the flood evacuation plan 
 
H. Flood resilience should be duly considered in the design of the new 

building(s) or renovation. Guidance may be found in BRE Digest 
532 Parts 1 and 2, 2012 and BRE Good Building Guide 84. 

 
I. Surface water drainage plans should include the following: 

 Rainwater pipes, gullies and drainage channels including cover 
levels. 

Page 76



53 
 

 Inspection chambers, manholes and silt traps including cover and 
invert levels. 

 Pipe sizes, pipe materials, gradients, flow directions and pipe 
numbers. 

 Soakaways, including size and material. 

 Typical inspection chamber / soakaway / silt trap and SW 
attenuation details. 

 Site ground levels and finished floor levels. 
 
J. On Site Surface Water Management; 

 The site is required to accommodate rainfall volumes up to the 
1% probability annual rainfall event (plus climate change) whilst 
ensuring no flooding to buildings or adjacent land. 

 The applicant will need to provide details and calculations 
including any below ground storage, overflow paths (flood 
routes), surface detention and infiltration areas, etc, to 
demonstrate how the 100 year + 40% Climate Change rainfall 
volumes will be controlled and accommodated. In addition, an 
appropriate allowance should be made for urban creep 
throughout the lifetime of the development as per ‘BS 8582:2013 
Code of Practice for Surface Water Management for Developed 
Sites’ (to be agreed with the LLFA). 

 Production of a plan showing above ground flood pathways 
(where relevant) for events in excess of the 1% probability 
annual rainfall event, to ensure exceedance routes can be safely 
managed. 

 A plan detailing the impermeable area attributed to each 
drainage asset (pipes, swales, etc). 

 
Peak Flow Control: 

 For greenfield developments, the peak run-off rate from the 
development to any highway drain, sewer or surface water body 
for the 1 in 1 year rainfall event and the 1 in 100 year rainfall 
event, should never exceed the peak greenfield run-off rate for 
the same event. 

 For developments which were previously developed, the peak 
run-off rate from the development to any drain, sewer or surface 
water body for the 100% probability annual rainfall event and the 
1% probability annual rainfall event must be as close as 
reasonably practicable to the greenfield run-off rate from the 
development for the same rainfall event, but should never 

Page 77



54 
 

exceed the rate of discharge from the development, prior to 
redevelopment for that event. 

 
Volume Control: 

 For greenfield developments, the runoff volume from the 
development to any highway drain, sewer or surface water body 
in the 6 hour 1% probability annual rainfall event must not 
exceed the greenfield runoff volume for the same event. 

 For developments which have been previously developed, the 
runoff volume from the development to any highway drain, sewer 
or surface water body in the 6 hour 1% probability annual rainfall 
event must be constrained to a value as close as is reasonably 
practicable to the greenfield runoff volume for the same event, 
but must not exceed the runoff volume for the development site 
prior to redevelopment for that event. 

Note:- If the greenfield run-off for a site is calculated at less than 2 l/s, 
then a minimum of 2 l/s could be used (subject to approval from the 
LLFA). 

 Details of how the on-site surface water drainage systems shall 
be maintained and managed after completion and for the lifetime 
of the development to ensure the features remain functional. 

 Where cellular storage is proposed and is within areas where it 
may be susceptible to damage by excavation by other utility 
contractors, warning signage should be provided to inform of its 
presence. Cellular storage and infiltration systems should not be 
positioned within the highway. 

 Guidance on flood pathways can be found in BS EN 752. 

 The Greenfield runoff rate which is to be used for assessing the 
requirements for limiting discharge flow rates and attenuation 
storage for a site should be calculated for the whole 
development area (paved and pervious surfaces - houses, 
gardens, roads, and other open space) that is within the area 
served by the drainage network, whatever the size of the site 
and type of drainage system. Significant green areas such as 
recreation parks, general public open space, etc., which are not 
served by the drainage system and do not play a part in the 
runoff management for the site, and which can be assumed to 
have a runoff response which is similar to that prior to the 
development taking place, may be excluded from the greenfield 
analysis. 

 

Page 78



55 
 

K. If infiltration systems are to be used for surface water disposal, the 
following information 
must be provided: 

 Ground percolation tests to BRE 365. 

 Ground water levels records. Minimum 1m clearance from 
maximum seasonal groundwater level to base of infiltration 
compound. This should include assessment of relevant 
groundwater borehole records, maps and on-site monitoring in 
wells. 

 Soil / rock descriptions in accordance with BS EN ISO 14688-
1:2002 or BS EN ISO 14689-1:2003. 

 Volume design calculations to 1% probability annual rainfall 
event + 40% climate change standard. An appropriate factor of 
safety should be applied to the design in accordance with CIRIA 
C753 – Table 25.2. 

 Location plans indicating position (soakaways serving more than 
one property must be located in an accessible position for 
maintenance). Soakaways should not be used within 5m of 
buildings or the highway or any other structure. 

 Drawing details including sizes and material. 

 Details of a sedimentation chamber (silt trap) upstream of the 
inlet should be included. 

Soakaway detailed design guidance is given in CIRIA Report 753, 
CIRIA Report 156 and BRE 
Digest 365. 
 
L. All Micro Drainage calculations and results must be submitted in 
.MDX format, to the LPA. 
(Other methods of drainage calculations are acceptable.) 
 
M. The applicant should submit a comprehensive management plan 
detailing how surface water shall be managed on site during the 
construction phase of the development ensuring there is no increase 
in flood risk off site or to occupied buildings within the development. 
 
6. The Highway Authority recommends that the first 6m of the 

proposed access/driveways should not be surfaced with a loose 
material (i.e. unbound chippings or gravel etc.).  In the event that 
loose material is transferred to the highway and is regarded as a 
hazard or nuisance to highway users the Authority reserves the 
right to take any necessary action against the landowner. 

 

Page 79



56 
 

7. Pursuant to Sections 149 and 151 of the Highways Act 1980, steps 
shall be taken to ensure that mud or other extraneous material is 
not carried out of the site and deposited on the public highway. 
Should such deposits occur, it is the applicant’s responsibility to 
ensure that all reasonable steps (e.g. street sweeping) are taken to 
maintain the roads in the vicinity of the site to a satisfactory level of 
cleanliness. 

 
8. Pursuant to Section 163 of the Highways Act 1980, where the site 

curtilage slopes down towards the public highway / new estate 
street measures shall be taken to ensure that surface water run-ff 
from within the site is not permitted to discharge across the footway 
margin.  This usually takes the form of a dish channel or gully laid 
across the access immediately behind the back edge of the 
highway, discharging to a drain or soakaway within the site. 

 
9. Pursuant to Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 and the 

provisions of the Traffic Management Act 2004, no works may 
commence within the limits of the public highway without the formal 
written Agreement of the County Council as Highway Authority. It 
must be ensured that public transport services in the vicinity of the 
site are not adversely affected by the development works. 

 
10. Advice regarding the technical, legal, administrative and financial 

processes involved in Section 278 Agreements may be obtained 
from Mr K Barton in Development Control at County Hall, Matlock 
(tel: 01629 538658). The applicant is advised to allow 
approximately 12 weeks in any programme of works to obtain a 
Section 278 Agreement. 

 
11. Pursuant to Section 38 and the Advance Payments Code of the 

Highways Act 1980, the proposed new estate roads should be laid 
out and constructed to adoptable standards and financially secured.  
Advice regarding the technical, financial, legal and administrative 
processes involved in achieving adoption of new residential roads 
may be obtained from the Executive Director of Place at County 
Hall, Matlock (telephone 01629 538578). 

 
12. Highway surface water shall be disposed of via a positive, 

gravity fed system (i.e. not pumped) discharging to an approved 
point of outfall (e.g. existing public sewer, highway drain or 
watercourse) to be sanctioned by the Water Authority (or their 
Agent), Highway Authority or Environment Agency respectively.  

Page 80



57 
 

The use of soakaways for highway purposes is generally not 
sanctioned. 

 
13. The application site is affected by a Public Right of Way 

(Footpaths 15, 16 and 17 on the Derbyshire Definitive Map). The 
routes must remain unobstructed on their legal alignment at all 
times and the safety of the public using it must not be prejudiced 
either during or after development works take place. Further advice 
can be obtained by calling 01629 533190. 

 
• Please note that the granting of planning permission is not 

consent to divert or obstruct a public right of way. 
 
• If it is necessary to temporarily obstruct a right of way to 

undertake development works then a temporary closure is 
obtainable from the County Council. Please contact 01629 
533190 for further information and an application form. 

 
• If a right of way is required to be permanently diverted then the 

Council that determines the planning application (The Planning 
Authority) has the necessary powers to make a diversion order. 

 
• Any development insofar as it will permanently affect a public 

right of way must not commence until a diversion order 
(obtainable from the planning authority) has been confirmed. A 
temporary closure of the public right of way to facilitate public 
safety during the works may then be granted by the County 
Council. 

 
• To avoid delays, where there is reasonable expectation that 

planning permission will be forthcoming, the proposals for any 
permanent stopping up or diversion of a public right of way can 
be considered concurrently with the application for proposed 
development rather than await the granting of permission. 

 
14. Under the provisions of the New Roads and Streetworks Act 

1991 and the Traffic Management Act 2004, all works that involve 
breaking up, resurfacing and / or reducing the width of the 
carriageway require a notice to be submitted to Derbyshire County 
Council for Highway, Developer and Street Works.  Works that 
involve road closures and / or are for a duration of more than 11 
days require three months notice.  Developer’s works will generally 
require a three months notice.  Developers and Utilities (for 

Page 81



58 
 

associated services) should prepare programmes for all works that 
are required for the development by all parties such that these can 
be approved through the co-ordination, noticing and licensing 
process.  This will require Utilities and developers to work to agreed 
programmes and booked slots for each part of the works.  
Developers considering all scales of development are advised to 
enter into dialogue with Derbyshire County Council’s Highways 
Noticing Section at the earliest stage possible and this includes 
prior to final planning consents. 

 
15. The applicant is advised that the discharge Condition 14 that the 

Local Planning Authority requires a copy of a completed Agreement 
between the applicant and the Local Highway Authority under 
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the constitution and details 
of a Private Management and Maintenance Company confirming 
funding, management and maintenance regimes. 

 
16. Construction works are likely to require Traffic Management and 

advice regarding procedures should be sought from Mr J Adams, 
Traffic Management, 01629 538628. All road closure and temporary 
traffic signal applications will have to be submitted via the County 
Councils web-site; relevant forms are available via the following link 
- 
http://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/transport_roads/roads_traffic/roadwor
ks/default.asp 

 
17. The application proposals are affected by a Prescribed Building 

Line under the Road Improvements Act 1925.  Whilst it is an 
offence to undertake building works in advance of this line, it may 
be possible for the applicant to apply to rescind the line. The 
applicant is advised to write to the Executive Director - Place at 
County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, at least 6 weeks before 
commencing works requesting that the line(s) be removed and 
confirming that they will meet the Authority’s administrative / legal 
costs if the removal is approved. For further advice, please contact 
Mr I Turkington at ian.turkington@derbyshire.gov.uk   

 
18. Pursuant to Sections 219/220 of the Highways Act 1980, relating 

to the Advance Payments Code, where development takes place 
fronting new estate streets the Highway Authority is obliged to 
serve notice on the developer, under the provisions of the Act, to 
financially secure the cost of bringing up the estate streets up to 
adoptable standards at some future date. This takes the form of a 

Page 82



59 
 

cash deposit equal to the calculated construction costs and may be 
held indefinitely. The developer normally discharges his obligations 
under this Act by producing a layout suitable for adoption and 
entering into an Agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 
1980. 

 
19. Effective monitoring is an essential requirement of a successful 

Travel Plan. The Highway Authority recommends the use of the 
STARS For Travel plan toolkit: https://www.starsfor.org  , although 
other monitoring methods are available. Use of this system ensures 
a consistency of quality and puts in place a straightforward system 
for subsequent updating and monitoring.  Fees are levied for the 
use of this system. Contact: sustainable.travel@derbyshire.gov.uk 
for more details. 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the Controller of 
Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution 
or civil proceedings.
Chesterfield Borough Council Licence No.  100018505 (2017)

N
Scale 1:7293

CHE/20/00869/REM

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
COMMITTEE/SUB   Planning Committee 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING   23rd August, 2021 
 
 
TITLE     DELEGATION 
 
 
PUBLICITY    For Publication 
 
 
CONTENTS Items approved by 

Development Management and  
Conservation Manager under 
the following Delegation 
references:- 

 
Planning Applications  

 P020D, P200D to P250D, 
P270D to P320D, P350D to 
P370D, P390D, P420D to 
P440D 

 
Agricultural and 
Telecommunications 
P330D and P340D 

  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  Not applicable 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND Relevant applications 
PAPERS 
 

These are reported to Planning Committee for information only.  
Anyone requiring further information on any of the matters 
contained in this report should contact:- 
 
Planning Applications   Paul Staniforth      345781 

Page 87

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 Delegated List 
 Planning Applications 
 Code No Ward Proposal Decision  Decision Date 

 FileNo 

  

 CHE/21/00057/FUL Lowgates  Erection of one bed detached  CP 07/07/2021 
 And  bungalow ancillary to primary  
 Woodthorpe accommodation 

 At The Croft  

 2A Seymour Lane 

 Woodthorpe 

 S43 3DA 
 For Mr Hodgetts 

 CHE/21/00082/FUL Walton First floor extension with pitched roof  CP 09/07/2021 
 over existing single storey rear  
 extension and two storey side  
 extension (revised plans received  
 21.04.2021 and amended 07.07.2021) 

 At 151 Walton Road 

 Walton 

 Derbyshire 

 S40 3BX 

 
 For Mrs Fiona Legallez 

 CHE/21/00102/FUL Hasland Resubmission of application  CP 05/07/2021 
 CHE/20/00266/FUL - single storey rear  
 and side extension and garage  
 conversion (revised plans received  
 20.05.2021) 

 At 48 Hartfield Close 
  Hasland 
  S41 0NU 

 For Mr Pawel Filip 

 CHE/21/00119/FUL Brimington  Rear 2 storey extension to form 2 new  CP 07/07/2021 
 North bedrooms to first floor and open plan  
 kitchen dining room to ground floor 

 At 4 Ringwood Meadows 
  Brimington 
  S43 1FE 

 For Mr Chris Buxton 

Page 89



  

 CHE/21/00146/FUL Walton Two storey rear extension to dwelling  CP 06/07/2021 
 with balcony at first floor level and  
 extension to existing garage at rear  
 (amended block plan received  
 16.05.2021) 

 At 6 Sunningdale Rise 
  Walton 
  Derbyshire 
  S40 3HH 

 

 For Mr Richard Wilkins 

 CHE/21/00159/FUL Brimington  Two storey rear extension and re- CP 08/07/2021 
 South orientation of the roof (additional  
 drawings received 10/05/21) 

 At 39 Chesterfield Road 

 Brimington 

 Chesterfield 

 S43 1AB 

 For Mr Mark McKay 

 CHE/21/00210/FUL St Leonards Two storey and single storey side  REF 14/07/2021 
 extensions 

 At 47 Hady Crescent 
  Hady 
  Derbyshire 
  S41 0EB 

 For Mr Steven Packwood 

 CHE/21/00218/FUL Rother Telecommunications base station  CP 12/07/2021 
 upgrade - existing 15m street pole to  
 be removed. and replaced with 20m  
 street pole and associated ancillary  
 works. 

 At Vodafone CS16627 
  Telecommunications Mast At Junction Of St  

 Augustines Road 

 Harehill Road 

 Grangewood, 

 Chesterfield  

 For Cornerstone 

 CHE/21/00241/FUL Lowgates  Demolition of existing garage and  CP 09/07/2021 
 And  erection of a ground floor rear and side  
 Woodthorpe extension with raised patio (amended  
 plans received 03.06.2021) 

 At 15 Bridle Road 
  Woodthorpe 
  Derbyshire 

Page 90



  S43 3BY 

 For Mr Paul Bean 

 CHE/21/00249/FUL Walton Erection of a single storey, single room, CP 02/07/2021 
 recreational outbuilding 

 At 29 Gilbert Avenue 
  Walton 
  S40 3EU 

 For Ms Jackelyn Wheatman 

 CHE/21/00257/FUL Brimington  Extension and conversion of garage to  CP 05/07/2021 
 South sitting room. 

 At 347 Brimington Road 
  Tapton 
  S41 0TE 

 For Mr and Mrs Weighill 

 CHE/21/00259/ADV Old  Externally illuminated fascia signs CP 20/07/2021 
 Whittington At Whitting Valley Road Trading Estate, Unit 17A  
  Whitting Valley Road 

 Old Whittington 

 S41 9EY 

 For Howdens 

 CHE/21/00272/FUL Middlecroft  Erection of a porch CP 02/07/2021 
 And   
 2849 Poolsbrook 
 2849 At Poolsbrook Primary School  
  Cottage Close 
  Poolsbrook 
  S43 3LF 

 For Poolsbrook Primary School 

 CHE/21/00296/FUL Lowgates  First floor extension above garage at  CP 05/07/2021 
 And  front and rear of propetty 
 Woodthorpe At 18 Tollbridge Road 

  Woodthorpe 

  S43 3BL 

 For Mr Daniel Saunby  

 CHE/21/00311/FUL Brimington  Two storey side extension to existing  REF 13/07/2021 
 North dwelling, consisting of ground floor  
 garage and first floor bedroom with en- 
 suite. 

 At 18 Dorset Drive 
  Brimington 
  S43 1DS 

 For Mrs Alison Booth 

 CHE/21/00343/FUL West Single storey side and rear extension CP 02/07/2021 
 At 56 Somersall Park Road Page 91



 Chesterfield 

 S40 3LD 
 For Mrs B Harris 

 CHE/21/00344/FUL Old  Increase to floor area of existing attic  CP 05/07/2021 
 Whittington bedroom, addition of 4. opening  
 rooflights and replacement of existing  
 gable window. 

 At 33 Howard Drive 

 Old Whittington 

 S41 9JU 
 For Mrs Christine Moss 

 CHE/21/00353/FUL Walton Demolition of existing garden room and CP 14/07/2021 
 construction of new side and rear  
 single storey extension 

 At 18 Foxcote Way 

 Walton 

 Chesterfield 

 S42 7NP 

 
 For Mr and Mrs O'Brien 

 CHE/21/00356/FUL Holmebrook Construction of porch to front elevation  CP 05/07/2021 
 and single storey rear extension. 

 At 10 Vernon Road 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 1EP 
 For Mr and Mrs K Lodge  

  

 CHE/21/00357/FUL West Single storey rear extension to both  CP 19/07/2021 
 dwellings to enable the conversion of  
 two dwellings into one 

 At 272 - 274 Old Road 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 3QN 

 For Mrs Clare Dolman 

 CHE/21/00359/REM West Variation of condition 2 (approved  CP 08/07/2021 
 plans) of CHE/20/00579/FUL  
 (Extension and alterations to existing  
 garage) to bring proposed front  
 elevation in line with the existing  
 garage and for the roof to continue  
 through on the same line as the  
 existing 
 
Condition Number(s): 02 
 

 
 Conditions(s) Removal: 

Page 92



To provide  
 a straighter line of the roof and front  
 elevation and give headroom to the  
 linking doorway at 1st floor level  
 between the existing and proposed. 

 
 To reduce maintenance and prevent  
 Deterioration. To bring the proposed  
 front elevation in line with the existing  
 and for the roof to continue through on  
 the same line as the existing. 

 
 Replace cedar cladding with p.v.c 
 At 27 Westbrook Drive 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 3PQ 

 For Mr M Crawley 

 CHE/21/00360/FUL Lowgates  Demolition of existing garage and  CP 08/07/2021 
 And  stores and erection of replacement  
 Woodthorpe single storey side extension, front  
 porch extension, single storey rear  
 extension and raising of roof to provide  
 a second floor bedroom and en-suite  
 (re-submission and amended scheme  
 of CHE/21/00118/FUL) 

 At 42 Ralph Road 
  Staveley 
  Derbyshire 
  S43 3PY 

 For Mr Tim Newsum  

 CHE/21/00364/LBC St Leonards Roof repairs, including removal and  CP 02/07/2021 
 careful storage of all slates,  
 replacement of existing felt and battens 
 with new breathable felt and battens,  
 relaying of original slates with like for  
 like replacement where broken or  
 unusable, installation of new lead  
 flashing, upstands and valley gutters.  

 
 External redecoration of front elevation, 
 including repainting of timber frame  
 members and window frames,  
 repainting of rendered infill panels,  
 repainting of shopfront and Doric  
 columns.  
External redecoration of  
 north-west side elevation, including  
 repainting of timber window frames. 
 Redecoration of all rainwater goods. At 
 2868 13 Low Pavement 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 1PF 

 For Yorkshire Building Society 

Page 93



 

 CHE/21/00368/FUL Dunston Demolition of existing conservatory and CP 14/07/2021 
 erection of single storey rear extension 

 At 12 Kendal Road 
  Newbold 
  Chesterfield 
  S41 8HY 

 For Mr and Mrs Strong 

 CHE/21/00370/FUL Rother Erection of an attached garage REF 16/07/2021 
 At 9 Byron Road 

 Birdholme 

 Derbyshire 

 S40 2TH 
 For Mr Samuel McMaster 

 CHE/21/00375/TPD Dunston Single storey rear extension PANR 08/07/2021 
 At 20 Newby Road 

 Newbold 

 Derbyshire 

 S41 8HG 
 For Mrs Helen Lenton  

 CHE/21/00378/FUL Walton Single storey rear and side extension  CP 07/07/2021 
 and raised rear decking area. 

 At 19 Delves Close 
  Walton 
  S40 2BU 

 For Mr and Mrs Bungay 

 CHE/21/00380/REM St Leonards Variation of condition 19  of  CP 09/07/2021 
 CHE/11/00151/FUL in order to allow  
 the sale of food retail goods from up to  
 1,898 sq. m of floorspace. 

 At Debenhams 

 Unit 1B 

 Ravenside Retail Park 

 Park Road 
 Chesterfield 
 S40 1TB 

 For 

 CHE/21/00383/FUL Brimington  Demolition of existing 
conservatory and CP 15/07/2021 
 South build single storey rear extension with  
 external landscaping works 

 At 7 Darwent Road 
  Tapton 
  Chesterfield 
  S41 0UE 

 For Mr & Mrs Boden 
Page 94



 CHE/21/00396/PA Brockwell Prior approval for the change of use of  CP 20/07/2021 
 former Council building to 59 no.  
 apartments (Description changed to  
 correct the no. of apartments  
 27.05.2021) 

 At Former North East Derbyshire County Council  

 Council House 
 Saltergate 
 Chesterfield 
 S40 1LF 

 

 For Hi Blackpool Ltd 

 CHE/21/00450/TPD Hollingwood single storey rear extension PANR 08/07/2021 
  And   
 Inkersall 
 At 50 Laburnum Street 
 Hollingwood 
 Derbyshire 
 S43 2JJ 

 
 For Mark Hewitt 

 CHE/21/00452/CPO Hasland DCC consultation - erection of 2.4m  OC 07/07/2021 
 high steel weld mesh security fence to  
 the perimeter of the school playing field 

 At Hasland Junior School 

 The Green 

 Hasland 

 Derbyshire 

 
 For Derbyshire County Council 

 CHE/21/00472/CPO Hasland Extended area for scrap metal recovery OBJ 06/07/2021 
 and ancillary operations to encompass 
 wider site area, including Increase  
 incoming waste tonnage to 75,000  
 tonnes per annum, additional storage  
 areas, and increase the storage  
 stockpile heights to 4m in bays. 

 
 Extended area for scrap metal recovery 
 and ancillary operations to encompass 
 wider site area, including Increase  
 incoming waste tonnage to 75,000  
 tonnes per annum, additional storage  
 areas, and increase the storage  
 stockpile heights to 4m in bays. 

 
 Extended area for scrap metal recovery 
 and ancillary operations to encompass 
 wider site area, including Increase  
 incoming waste tonnage to 75,000  Page 95



 tonnes per annum, additional storage  
 areas, and increase the storage  
 stockpile heights to 4m in bays. 

 At Hastec Rail Ltd 

 Unit 2 

 Ace Business Park 

 Burley Close 
 Chesterfield 
 S40 2WL 

 

 For Pinball Metals Ltd 

 CHE/21/00477/DOC Lowgates  Discharge of planning condition11  DPC 08/07/2021 
 And  (power generation) of  
 Woodthorpe CHE/13/00675/OUT - Redevelopment  
 of land for employment uses (Use  
 Classes B1, B2 and B8) 
 At Land Accessed From 
  Farndale Road 
  Staveley 
  Derbyshire 

 For Tawnywood Ltd 

 CHE/21/00479/TPD Hollingwood Demolition of existing conservatory and PANR 16/07/2021 
  And  erection of a single storey rear  
 Inkersall extension 

 At 1 Bramley Close 

 Inkersall 

 Derbyshire 

 S43 3GH 
 For Mr John Pointon 

 CHE/21/00480/TPD Loundsley  Single storey rear extension PANR 16/07/2021 
 Green At 50 Langhurst Road 

 Brockwell 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 4BD 
 For Debra Atkinson 

 CHE/21/00503/TPO West Crownlift by maximum of 4m from  CP 21/07/2021 
 ground pruning back to suitable  
 replacement branches leaving a well  
 balanced crown. Crown thin to  
 maximum of 20% including pruning  
 outer canopy leaving an even density  
 of foliage of T1 Oak 

 At 10 Ians Way 

 Loundsley Green 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 4PY 

 For Mr David James 
Page 96



  

 CHE/21/00504/TPO Dunston Oak. (T.16) fell due to excessive die  CP 20/07/2021 
 back in canopy. Replant with a  
 replacement English Oak in green  
 space between the properties 9-10 

 At 9 Sedbergh Crescent 

 Newbold 

 S41 8DY 
 For Mr Gary McCarthy 

 CHE/21/00511/CA Old  Crown reduction of Holly tree.   UP 20/07/2021 
 Whittington Reducing the height of the tree to 13 ft  
 and its spread to 10 ft 

 At 18 Church Street North 

 Old Whittington 

 Derbyshire 

 S41 9QW 

 
 For Mr Guy Merchant 

CHE/21/00009/DOC Holmebrook Discharge of conditions 3 (Levels), ,4   DPC 06/08/2021 
 (Materials), 9/10/11 (Drainage), 12  
 (Site Investigation), 13 (Landscaping)  
 and 14 (Ecology Survey) of  
 CHE/19/00200/FUL - Residential  
 development of six dwelling in two  
 terraces of three units, designated off  
 road parking with new access from  
 Sydney Street and Springfield Avenue,  
 bin-stores and garden sheds and  
 landscaping. 

 At St Marks Vicarage 
  15 St Marks Road 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 1DH 

 

 For Hadfield Design and Build Ltd 

 CHE/21/00011/FUL Hasland Demolition of existing garage and  CP 09/08/2021 
 erection of double garage, extensions  
 to rear, front and side, alterations to  
 roof line - re-submission of  
 CHE/20/00508/FUL.  Revised drawings 
 received 09.03.2021, 30.03.2021,  
 12.04.2021, 21.05.21, 23.06.21 and  
 13/07/21 

 At 29 Meadowhill Road 
  Hasland 
  Chesterfield 
  S41 0BG 

 For Mr Steven Thompson and Miss Trudy Gibbins  Page 97



 

 CHE/21/00018/NMA St Helens Non-material amendment to  RC 28/07/2021 
 CHE/19/00007 (Approval of reserved  
 matters of appearance, layout and  
 scale, of CHE/18/00083/REM1, for the  
 development of 177 dwellings, public  
 open space and associated  
 infrastructure) to omit undercroft  
 parking to one apartment block on the  
 eastern side and to omit the  
 pedestrian/cycle path connection to the  
 north east of the site 

 At land at East of A61Known As Chesterfield Waterside 
  Brimington Road 

 Tapton 

 Derbyshire 

 

 For Avant Homes 

 CHE/21/00020/FUL St Leonards Change of use of vacant first and  REF 27/07/2021 
 second floor office and retail  
 accommodation into 36 residential  
 apartments (Amended plans received   
 02.07.2021 with reduced numbers of  
 units to the first floor) 

 At Burlington House 
  Burlington Street 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 1RX 

 

 For Gape Equity Limited 

 CHE/21/00038/DOC St Helens Discharge of condition 7 (hard  DPC 27/07/2021 
 landscaping) of CHE/19/00116/REM -  
 Approval of reserved matters for layout, 
 scale, appearance and landscaping of  
 the office building pursuant to  
 (CHE/18/00626/REM 1 for a mixed use  
 development including hotel, multi  
 storey car park, office accommodation  
 and apartments together with ground  
 floor retail and leisure uses 

 At Land At East Of A61Known As Chesterfield Waterside 
  Brimington Road 

 Tapton 

 Derbyshire 

 For Chesterfield Waterside Ltd   

 CHE/21/00040/RET Moor Retrospective change of use of an  CP 22/07/2021 
 existing building from a glass  

Page 98



 manufacturing, storage and distribution 
 unit (Class B2/ B8) to an online auction 
 house and distribution unit (Class B2/  
 B8/ Sui Generis), the retention of  
 existing office space (Class E) and  
 retrospective amendments to the  
 exterior of the building. 
 At John Pye Auctions 
  Newton House 
  Pottery Lane West 
  Whittington Moor 

 Chesterfield 

 S41 9BN 

 

 For John Pye and Sons Ltd 

 CHE/21/00124/DOC Middlecroft  Discharge of planning conditions 8 (site PDOC 06/08/2021 
 And   layout), 9 (remediation scheme), 11  
 Poolsbrook (biodiversity net gain and soft  
 landscaping) and 12 (Materials) of  
 CHE/19/00518/FUL - Erection of two  
 new two-bedroom houses 

 At 8 Court Place 
  Staveley 
  Derbyshire 
  S43 3RJ 

 

 For Chesterfield Borough Council 

 CHE/21/00238/DOC St Helens Discharge of conditions 2 ad 11 of  DPC 10/08/2021 
 CHE/19/00116/REM 

 At Land at East Of A61Known As Chesterfield Waterside 
  Brimington Road 

 Tapton 

 Derbyshire 

 

 For Chesterfield Waterside Ltd 

 CHE/21/00258/FUL West Single storey rear extension, two storey CP 23/07/2021 
 side extension and front porch (revised 
 drawing received 20.07.2021) 

 At 58 Greenbank Drive 
  Loundsley Green 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 4BX 

 For Donna Masters 
  

 CHE/21/00274/FUL Barrow Hill  Placement of a metal storage unit  CP 04/08/2021 
 And New  approximately 9.12xW2.44xH2.59  
 Whittington metres behind the main building, to be  
 shielded from the road by  
 shrubs/bushes Page 99



 At Hollingwood Lock House  
  22 Works Road 
  Hollingwood 
  S43 2PF 

 For Peter Hardy 

 CHE/21/00292/RET Brimington  Retention of shed/summerhouse CP 09/08/2021 
 South At 23 Tapton Vale 
  Tapton 
  Derbyshire 
  S41 0SY 

 

 For Ms Michele Melville 

 

 CHE/21/00305/FUL Linacre To extend the existing front porch to  CP 03/08/2021 
 create a single storey front extension 

 At 48 Brushfield Road 

 Holme Hall 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 4XE 

 
 For Ashgate Associates Ltd. 

 CHE/21/00320/FUL Brimington  Proposed rear extension and front porch CP 03/08/2021 
 South 

 At19 Newbridge Lane 
  Brimington 
  S43 1LX 

 For Mr and Mrs Godber 

 CHE/21/00323/FUL West Two storey front extension and  CP 23/07/2021 
 associated internal and external  
 alterations 

 At 56 Vincent Crescent 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 3NP 

 For Mr and Mrs Lilley  

 CHE/21/00345/FUL West Single storey rear extension CP 22/07/2021 
 At 1 Queen Mary Road 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 3LB 

 
 For Mr and Mrs Bellamy 

 

 

 

 

 Page 100



 CHE/21/00350/FUL Linacre Demolition of existing conservatory and REF 06/08/2021 
 erection of a two-storey rear extension, 
 single storey side extension and new  
 gables over existing windows on the  
 front elevation 

 At 8 Easedale Close 
  Holme Hall 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 4XP 

 For Mr M Watkin 

 CHE/21/00354/FUL West Conversion and extension of garage to  CP 22/07/2021 
 garden room 

 At 152 Somersall Lane 
  Somersall 
  Derbyshire 
  S40 3LZ 

 For Mr Robert Johnson 

 CHE/21/00400/FUL St Helens Single storey rear extension, new utility  CP 09/08/2021 
 room/wc, roof and internal alterations. 

 At 18 Abercrombie Street 
  Chesterfield 
  S41 7LW 

 For Craig Lonie 

 CHE/21/00401/FUL Hollingwood Two storey side extension - revised  CP 06/08/2021 
  And  information recevied 14/06/2021 
 Inkersall At 10 McMahon Avenue 

  Inkersall 

  S43 3HN 

 For Ms Rebecca Hodgson   

 CHE/21/00414/FUL Moor Two storey rear extension and  CP 26/07/2021 
 alterations 

 At 20 Ringwood Avenue 
  Newbold 
  S41 8RB 

 For Mr and Mrs Smith 

 CHE/21/00416/FUL West Single storey rear and side extension  CP 06/08/2021 
 and installation of two new dormer  
 windows to the front and two to the rear 
 of the property 

 At 27 Westbrook Drive 

 Chesterfield 

 S40 3PQ 

 
 For Mr M Crawley 

 Page 101



 CHE/21/00420/FUL Brimington  single storey rear extension CP 02/08/2021 
 South At 77 Paxton Road 

 Tapton 

 Derbyshire 

 S41 0TL 

 
 For Graham Noblett 

 CHE/21/00437/FUL Walton Single storey side extension to replace  CP 28/07/2021 
 existing garage 

 At 277 Walton Road 
  Walton 
  Derbyshire 
  S40 3BT 

 

 For Mr Juris Leimanis 

 CHE/21/00447/FUL Dunston Re-submission of CHE/20/00103/FUL - CP 28/07/2021 
 two-storey side extension with new  
 bi-folds to the existing rear elevation 

 At 107 Dunston Lane 
  Newbold 
  S41 8HA 

 For Mr Richard Hodgson  

 CHE/21/00498/NMA St Helens Non-material amendment to  CPNMAZ 10/08/2021 
 CHE/19/00116/REM (Approval of  
 reserved matters for layout, scale,  
 appearance and landscaping of the  
 office building pursuant to  
 (CHE/18/00626/REM 1 for a mixed use  
 development including hotel, multi  
 storey car park, office accommodation  
 and apartments together with ground  
 floor retail and leisure uses) to add  
 ventilation louvres to the north facing  
 facade 

 At Chesterfield Waterside Development 

 Brimington Road 

 Tapton 
 Derbyshire 
 

 

 For Chesterfield Waterside Ltd 

 CHE/21/00502/TPO Holmebrook Tree species is a sycamore tree and is  CP 05/08/2021 
 positioned in the far, left hand corner at  
 the bottom of our garden - see on  
 sketch plan attached in supporting  
 documents 

Page 102



 
Advice from my arborist  
 is for the following work to be carried  
 out purely due to inconvenience and  
 domination over gardens.  There is no  
 damage occurred or diseases involved  
 and It is not considered that this will  
 impact negatively in any way on the  
 amenity value of the tree to the  
 community as the works requested is  
 purely overlooking gardens and cannot  
 be viewed by the general public. If you  
 disagree with this, please can you give  
 advice or specify what needs to be  
 done differently 
- request for Crown  
 reduction only on the western side of  
 the tree 2-4 metres to assist dominance 
 over gardens, purely for convenience 

 
 - Cutting back to suitable growth point  
 no less than one third the thickness of  
 the original branch in accordance with  
 BS3998 2012 
- Some Crown tidying  
 as required and in line with BS3998  
 2012 
 At 159 Old Hall Road 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 1HG 

 

 For Miss Tracey Hume 

 CHE/21/00505/EIA Lowgates  EIA Screening Opinion for the  EIANR 29/07/2021 
 And  development of a solar farm 
 Woodthorpe At Sewage Farm 

  Unnamed Track From Hague Lane To Sewage  

 Works 

 Mastin Moor 

 Derbyshire 

 

 For Arcus Consultancy Services Ltd 

 CHE/21/00526/NMA Moor Non material amendment to  CPNMAZ 05/08/2021 
 CHE/21/00168/FUL (Demolition of  
 existing conservatory and erection of a  
 single storey rear extension) for the   
 provision of roof lights to the extension 

 At 31 Dukes Drive 
  Newbold 
  S41 8QB 

 For Finch Page 103



 CHE/21/00544/TPO Brockwell Hawthorne (T1) - crown lift to avoid  CP 22/07/2021 
 obstruction to pedestrians on adjacent  
 footpath. 

 At Friends Meeting House  
  27 Ashgate Road 
  Chesterfield 
  S40 4AG 

 For Darren James Tree Services 

Page 104



 
 

 
 
COMMITTEE/SUB   Planning Committee 
 
 
DATE OF MEETING           23rd August, 2021 
 
 
TITLE     DELEGATION 
 
 
PUBLICITY    For Publication 

 
 
CONTENTS Items approved by the 

Development Management and  
Conservation Manager under 
the following Delegation 
references:- 

 
Felling and Pruning of Trees  

 P100D, P120D, P130D 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  Not applicable 
 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND Relevant applications 
PAPERS 
 
 

These are reported to Planning Committee for information only.  
Anyone requiring further information on any of the matters 
contained in this report should contact:- 
 
 
Applications to Fell or Prune Trees  Steve Perry 345791 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 2  NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO AFFECT TREES IN A CONSERVATION AREA 
 

CONTENTS OF NOTICE SUMMARY OF CONSIDERATIONS TERMS OF DECISION 
DATE OF 
DECISION 

CHE/21/00511/CA The pruning 
of one Holly tree at 18 Church 
Street North, Old Whittington. 

The tree is within the Old Whittington 
Conservation Area and the applicant 
wishes to crown reduce the tree in height 
to 4 metres and reduce the width to 3 
metres as the tree is outgrowing its 
location and catching on telephone wires.  

Agreement to the pruning of one 
Holly tree.  The pruning of the 
tree will have no adverse effect 
on the amenity value and 
character of the area. 

 
 
20/07/21 

 
 

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

APPEALS REPORT 
 
 

MEETING:  PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  23rd AUGUST, 2021 
 
REPORT BY: DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND 

CONSERVATION MANAGER 
 

 
FOR PUBLICATION 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR PUBLIC REPORTS 
 
TITLE     LOCATION 
 
Non exempt papers on files  Development Management 
referred to in report   Section 
      Planning Service 
      Town Hall   

Chesterfield 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 To inform Members regarding the current status of 
appeals being dealt with by the Council. 
 

 
PAUL STANIFORTH 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT AND CONSERVATION 
MANAGER 
 
 
These are reported to Planning Committee for information only.  
Anyone requiring further information on any of the matters 
contained in this report should contact Paul Staniforth on 01246 
345781. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



APPEALS 
 

FILE 
NO. 

WARD APPELLANT CASE MEMBER 
OFFICER 

DATE 
REC 

TYPE AND  
DATE 

DECISION 
AND DATE 

2/4041 Holmebrook ward Mrs Dena 
Wyatt 

CHE/20/00748/RET 
Extension to 24 
Springfield Avenue  
Refusal 

Officer 
delegation  

22/02/21 Written reps 
HAS 

 

2/3904 Walton ward Mr P 
Wilbourn 

CHE/20/00774/FUL 
Extension to 53 
Foljambe Avenue 
Refusal 

Officer 
delegation  

29/04/21 Written 
Reps 

 

 

P
age 111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
   
MEETING:  PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

DATE:  23rd August 2021 
 

REPORT BY: LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORY LAW MANAGER 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & CONSERVATION MANAGER 

WARD: 
 

As listed in the report 
  
FOR PUBLICATION                      BACKGROUND PAPERS  
TITLE: Non-exempt papers (if 
any) on relevant files 

LOCATION: LEGAL SERVICES 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For non-exempt information about current formal enforcement progress. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The table summarises formal planning enforcement by the Council.  
 
3.0 INFORMAL ACTION  
 
3.1 Formal enforcement is a last resort, with most planning problems resolved 

without formal action (in accordance with government guidance). More 
information on informal enforcement is available from the Enforcement team. 

 
4.0 MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE TABLE 
 
4.1 A summary of the main types of planning enforcement action available to the 

Council and penalties for non-compliance is available from Legal Services.   
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 That the report be noted. 

GERARD ROGERS 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND 

REGULATORY LAW MANAGER 
 

PAUL STANIFORTH 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
& CONSERVATION MANAGER 

 
Further information on this report from Gerard Rogers, Legal Services 
Tel 01246 345310 or email gerard.rogers@chesterfield.gov.uk

FOR PUBLICATION 

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



ENFORCEMENT REPORT 05 August 20217Enforcements currently Authorised:

Address Authorised Breach CHE/ Issued Effective Comply Notes  update Ward

days to issue last updatedays to (-) /fromdays to (-) /fromdays from

Breach of Condition Notice 540Authorised to Issue Average: days1Total currently Authorised:

York Street 23/09/19 balcony, canopy 
and french door

17/00800/FUL 16/03/21 16/03/21 16/04/21 Issued. One month to 
submit details. Then 6 
months after approval 
to carry out works. Not 
complied. Prosecute.

2 Ha
540 18/03/21111142682

Enforcement Notice 281Authorised to Issue Average: days4Total currently Authorised:

Markham Road 18/02/08 storage of 
commercial vehicles

20/03/08 18/04/08 20/10/08 Complied by 2009. 
Unauthorised use has 
started again. 
Prosecute - awaiting 
instructions.

Markham 
House

HI
31 14/11/19467248574,917

Pottery Lane 
West

06/01/20 two unauthorised 
metal structures.

06/02/20 15/10/20 12/11/20 Initially action against 
one structure approved 
12/11/19, then second 
structure installed and 
further report on both 
structures approved 
06/01/20. Issued. 
Appeal dismissed. 
Prosecute - awaiting 
instructions

10 Mo
31 26/02/21266294577

Details at 05 August 2021

P
age 114



Address Authorised Breach CHE/ Issued Effective Comply Notes  update Ward

days to issue last updatedays to (-) /fromdays to (-) /fromdays from

Tapton View 
Road

24/04/17 unauthorised 
extension

16/00648 14/06/19 22/07/19 22/01/20 Application dismissed 
on appeal. Application 
for changes to 
extension 
CHE/17/00827/FUL 
approved, but 
unauthorised 
extension not 
removed. Issued, 
requiring demolition of 
unauthorised part. 
Reports that has 
complied, being 
checked.

47 SH
781 04/08/215617451,564

York Street 09/10/17 conversion and 
extension of roof 
space

17/00800/FUL Flat conversion 
approved 03/04/18, 
conditions requiring 
removal of balcony, 
canopy, french 
windows appealed, but 
dismissed 18/12/18. 
Not complied with 
conditions. BCN 
served - see separate 
entry.

2 Ha
19/12/181,396

Section 215 Amenity Notice Authorised to Issue Average: days2Total currently Authorised:

Details at 05 August 2021

P
age 115



Address Authorised Breach CHE/ Issued Effective Comply Notes  update Ward

days to issue last updatedays to (-) /fromdays to (-) /fromdays from

Highfield Road 05/10/20 Removal of debris 
and waste

Update report 
15/02/21. Working with 
occupier and 
representative with 
view to progress 
without formal action.

80 SH
15/02/21304

Tapton Terrace 05/10/20 removal of Heras 
fencing and erection 
of new boundary 
fence, removal of 
vans, debris and 
waste

Update report 
15/02/21. Progressing 
without formal action.

26 SL
15/02/21304

Key to Ward abbreviations: BNW Barrow Hill and New Whittington• BN Brimington North • BS Brimington South • B Brockwell • D Dunston • Ha Hasland • Hb Holmebrook • HI 
Hollingwood and Inkersall • L Linacre • LG Loundsley Green • LW Lowgates  and Woodthorpe • MP Middlecroft and Poolsbrook • Mo Moor • N Newbold  • OW Old Whittington • R 
Rother • SH St Helens • SL St Leonards • Wa Walton • We West    

Action authorised by Committee except Breach of Condition, Planning Contravention,Section 215 Notices, Advertisement Discontinuance, prosecutions and urgent action which 
are authorised by officers      

SJP - single justice procedure: procecutions dealt with by the Magistrates Court on paper without a hearing in open court
CV-19 - coronavirus implications for enforcement or compliance

Details at 05 August 2021

P
age 116


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Planning Committee
	4 Applications for Planning Permission - Plans Determined by the Committee
	DETERMINATION -INDEX
	Item 1 - CHE-20-00869-REM northmoor view
	Item 1 Site Plan

	5 Applications for Planning Permission - Plans Determined by the Development Management and Conservation Manager (P140D)
	Delegated List 10.08.21

	6 Applications to Fell or Prune Trees (P620D)
	TREES IN A CONSERVATION AREA July 2021

	7 Appeals Report (P000)
	COMMITTEE APPEALS REPORT

	8 Enforcement Report (P410)



